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The foll ow ng proceedi ngs began at 10:30 a.m:

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's all cone to order.
Let's go on the record. Today is Septenber 6, 2022,
This is the mddle of the Evergy general rate case
hearings. These are File No. ER-2022-0129 and File No.
ER-2022- 0130 referencing Evergy Metro, Inc. for 0129 and
Evergy M ssouri West for File No. 0130.

Let's go ahead and start with our introduction
of parties. W have a nunber of parties that have been
excused. So | wll no |onger be reading those parties.
For Evergy, please go ahead.

MR, STEINER: Thanks, Your Honor. Roger
Steiner and Jim Fischer for Evergy.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, sir. And counse
for Staff.

M5. MERS: N cole Mers on behalf of Staff.

JUDGE HATCHER:  And counsel for the O fice of
the Public Counsel.

MR CLIZER  John Qi zer.

JUDGE HATCHER:  And Renew M ssouri

M5. GREENVALD: Alissa Geenwal d on behal f of
Renew M ssouri .

JUDGE HATCHER. Are there any other counse
for parties that | did not call that would like to be

recogni zed?
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Al right. Hearing none, we'll nove on. Just

a few brief announcenents before we get going today. |
want to sumup where we are real quick. Wen speaking,
|'"mgoing to remove ny mask. However, | wll be wearing
a mask for probably the remainder of the hearing | woul d
guess. Little personal note, | have seasonal allergies,
which |'msure you all witnessed getting the best of ne
on Thursday. So after a few days of bedrest, and
important to all in the roomtwo negative COVID tests,
' m back on the bench.

Also, | would like to thank Judge Nancy
Dippell for filling in in ny absence. And also an
update on our agreenents situation. W have two
stipulations and agreements that have been filed, and
the presiding officer was notified by email of a pending
third stipulation and agreenent to be filed. And
proceedi ng on that understanding and belief, today's
hearing will only address the one remaining contested
I ssue fromthe issues that were scheduled for today. To
wit: That wll be the subscription pricing pilot
program

On that, we have not yet schedul ed an
on-the-record presentation. | believe that schedule is
forthcomng. And one of those issues that will be

di scussed in the settlement will be the voltage
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regul ation issue | believe was one of the settled

Issues. So | just wanted to bring that to everyone's
attention. Are there any Conm ssioner comments?

COWM SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  Judge, this is
Comm ssioner Holsman. | would |ike to make a commrent on
that if | could.

JUDGE HATCHER: Pl ease. (o ahead.

COW SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  You know, often tines
our primary experiences help us better understand sone
of these nore conplex issues. In ny personal
experience, our famly had | ost power in July, came back
on a couple hours later. Unfortunately in doing so it
fried the air-conditioning conpressor and the brains of
the air-conditioning systemto which we had to have that
replaced and in the process of replacing that the
technicians had indicated that it was nost likely a
surge that had caused the damage to the equi pnent.

Just |ike any other custoner, we filed a
damage claimreport. That claimwas denied under the
under standi ng of 3.09 which essentially says in the
tariff that the conpany has to be willful in its danage.
Wel |, of course, nobody is going to claimthat a conpany
woul d intentionally do the damage, but all the same the
damage occurred because of the surge or nost likely

because of the surge.
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So I'minterested in voltage optim zation

because if the conpany is not going to have any
liability for the damage that they cause, then they at a
m ni mum shoul d be exploring voltage optim zation so that
that woul d not happen in the future. You know, | don't
know i f anybody has had to replace an air-conditioner
recently, but it is not an inexpensive proposition. For
all the custonmers out there in the state that woul d
potentially be faced with that same denial letter, they
may just have nowhere -- they'd just be out.

So | aminterested in what is being done to
try and optim ze that voltage so that way when the power
does conme back on it's delivering the amount of power
necessary to not cause equi pment danage. So | will be
interested in the results of that issue.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Conmi ssioner
Hol sman. Are there any other announcenents from
Conm ssioners? Al right. Hearing none, we'll go ahead
and nmove on.

As | said, we're just going to do one sub
I ssue today. This will be the pilot programknown as
subscription pricing.

COW SSI ONER RUPP:  Hey, Judge, it's
Comm ssioner Rupp. | just wanted to let you know | was

on the |ine.
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JUDGE HATCHER. Thank you. That rem nds ne.

| do apol ogi ze, Conmissioner. | would like to state for
the record we have on WebEx Conm ssioner Jason Hol snan,
al so Comm ssioner Scott Rupp, and joining ne live in
Courtroom 310 i s Conmi ssioner den Kol kneyer. Are there
any other Conm ssioners on the line?

COW SSI ONER COLEMAN:  Conmi ssi oner Col eman is
here.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, Conmi ssioner
Col eman.

COMWM SSI ONER COLEMAN:  You' re wel cone.

JUDGE HATCHER: Ckay. Let's go ahead and we
will turn to our one subject matter, pilot prograns.

"Il turn the floor over to the conpany, Evergy.

MR, FI SCHER: Thank you very nuch, Judge. My
it please the Conmission. M name is JimFischer. 1"l
be representing Evergy today. |'mpleased to have a
court reporter. | think it will be easier. W won't
have to always identify the speakers.

In this case, Evergy is focusing on severa
new tariff offerings and programs for increasing
customer choice for its electric service, including the
subscription pricing pilot study that we're going to be
tal ki ng about today. In 2020, Evergy devel oped a rate

moder ni zation plan to guide the conpany on severa
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identified rate objectives over time. The rate plan

provides a framework for Evergy that is both responsive
to the historical regulatory obligations here in

M ssouri, but it also provides a framework for the
conpany's future general rate case filings.

The conpany has shared its rate nodernization
plan with Staff, the Public Counsel and ot her
stakehol ders, and it presented this plan to the
Comm ssion during its on-the-record presentation of the
TOU or time of use rate design plan back in Septenber of
2021.

The rates, prograns, and offers that Evergy is
proposing within this rate case were borne out of that
rate plan. The rate plan has continued to evol ve based
upon custoner needs, custoner research, and outcones of
recent filings. In this case, Evergy filed tariffs in
testinony proposing ten new prograns and revisions to
four progrars.

Wth the proposed settlenment, many of the
I ssues though related to these prograns have been
resolved by the parties. You'll see that when we file
our stipulation |ater hopefully today.

Brian, can | have slide 2, please. As
explained in detail by Evergy witness KimWnslow, the

primary objectives of the rate nodernization plan are to
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create rates that are independent of end use

requirements, to bring rate structures closer together
across jurisdictions, to enable business growh, and to
sinplify rates in increasing price transparency.

Can | have slide 3. Additional goals of the
rate noderni zation plan include providing greater
custoner choice, increasing custoner satisfaction,
| everaging the CIS and the AM investnments of the
conpany, and devel oping price signals to increase grid
transparency -- or grid efficiency. |'msorry.

This chart is out of our testinony. It shows
the new and revised programs in the rate case which are
| argely borne directly out of the rate plan. And you
can see on the slide the various prograns that we have.
The subscription pricing pilot one that we're talking
about today is there in the orange in the mddle, but we
have several time of use programs including the existing
three-period plan. W have a new two-period plan and
two high differential TOU prograns really designed for
the EV driver in mnd.

There are al so sone distributed energy
resource plans, which include the solar subscription
rider, we have a low inconme solar subscription pil ot
program and a residential battery energy storage pil ot

programas well. Those have been largely settled issues
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now.

We did withdraw the green pricing renewabl e
energy credit program pending the approval of the
settlement in the FAC prudence review, Case No.

EOQ 2022-0064. And then under the business colum there
are several -- there's a market base demand response
program whi ch has existed and it's been revised. It's a
settled issue.

The second one, though, the tinme-related
pricing, that's an issue that you're going to hear nore
about tonmorrow in the rate design area. Then there's
t he business EV charging service, which is a new
program It was resubmtted from Evergy's
transportation electrification filing. | understand
it's now a settled issue.

Then of course we've had a | ong-standing | ow
I ncome weat herization programwhich is also being
addressed in this case. These prograns and rates are
described in detail in the direct testinonies of the
conpany w tnesses Kinberly Wnslow, Brad Lutz, Marisol
Mller, and Ryan Hedi k. For the court reporter,

M. Hedik will be ny first wwtness. H's nanme is
spelled H1l-e-d-i-k but it's pronounced Hedik is ny
under st andi ng.

As M. Caisley explains in his testinony,
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custonmers are no |onger satisfied with just one option

based upon a single rate in a tariff. Custoners want
the ability to choose for themsel ves the service option
that makes nost sense for their individual situations.

Evergy's proposals in this case are designed
to give custonmers nore options and nore choi ces on how
they are served by the conmpany. Subscription pricing
provi des custoners with a tailored and entirely fixed
bill for their electricity service. Custoners are
offered a nmonthly fixed bill anount that is based on
their historical usage, and that nonthly anmount remains
unchanged for a one-year term

At the end of the one-year term custoners do
not face any true-ups or adjustment charges for that
year. In this sense, it's simlar to the sinple form of
billing that custonmers have become very famliar with
for other services such as television and nusic
stream ng, gym menberships, and cell phone data pl ans.

In the 1990s, the tel ephone industry in
M ssouri experinmented with a service called | ocal
measured service where custoners would pay for their
| ocal telephone calls on a permtted and a time of use
basis. Sonetimes it's referred to as LM5. It was
priced |l ower than the flat rate |ocal telephone service

option for the average consumer. During that time, the
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O fice of the Public Counsel fought the proposal in the

I dea that |ocal measured service should be a nandatory
rate for residential custoners. OPC argued that it was
not appropriate for the tel ephone conpany to nandate
that all residential custonmers have |ocal neasured
service when they already had a flat rate monthly price
alternative for their |ocal service.

In the end, the Conm ssion approved | ocal
measured service on an optional basis giving custoners a
choice if they thought |ocal neasured service woul d
benefit them Local neasured service was potentially a
revenue growth opportunity for the tel ephone conpany,
especially with the advent of the internet com ng soon.
But the problemw th | ocal measured service was the
custoners were sinply unwlling to subscribe to it.

In 1996, Southwestern Bell requested a
variance fromthe Conmssion's rule that required their
customer service representatives tell new custoners
about the |owest priced option which was |ocal neasured
service. As Southwestern Bell explained to the
Conmi ssion, very few customers were interested in
subscribing to LMS and when new custoners call for
service they find the representative's description of
| ocal measured service to be an annoyance rather than a

service. So on that basis the Conm ssion granted the
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t el ephone conpany a permanent variance fromthe

requirements to tell consuners about |ocal measured
service as was recomrended in a stipulation by the
Conpany, Staff, and Public Counsel in that case. |If
you're interested in that regulatory history, it's Case
No. TO-97-71. Report and order was issued Decenber 20,
1996.

O course, today we have flat rate
subscription plans for the internet, for television
stream ng services, for gym nenbershi ps, and many ot her
services. Even our |ocal car wash here in Jefferson
Gty has a subscription plan. Custoners like the
certainty of flat rate subscription plans. In fact,
studi es have indicated about 78 percent of consumers
have one or nore subscription plans for products and
services that they subscribe to and that's really not
very surprising. | suspect that the vast majority of us
that are here in this roomor are watching on the
I nternet today have a flat rate subscription plan for
I nternet services.

One recent survey indicated that 49 percent of
consunmers prefer subscription pricing as a way that they
can treat thenselves, flat rate, and with a ngjority of
the custonmers liking to be billed on a nonthly basis for

their subscription plans. Staff and Public Counsel have
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argued that such anal ogies are just not relevant when

di scussing rate design concepts for electric utilities,
but | think the Comm ssion can judge for itself that
poi nt.

The abundance of subscription based services
fromother industries that we're all famliar with
hi ghlights that subscription pricing is a very common
formof pricing that consumers regularly encounter in
their everyday |ives.

In this sense, Evergy's custonmers wll have
famliarity wth the concept of paying a fixed fee for a
service that they use regularly. Revenues from products
and services paid for by subscription in the United
States is expected to growto $1.5 trillion by the year
2025, nearly doubling the $650 billion it's estimated to
have today.

Evergy's subscription pricing pilot wll
provi de residential custoners with an entirely fixed
monthly electricity bill. Now, based on the experience
of other utilities with simlar offers, Evergy expects
the sinplicity, the transparency, and the predictability
of this design to appeal to a subset of Evergy's
custoners, not everybody but a subset.

Again, this is an exanple of Evergy wanting to

give custonmers a choice on how they pay for their
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el ectric service. Several elenents of the subscription

pricing pilot mnimze any potential risk to the
cust omers.

Initially it will be introduced as a pil ot
with an enrol | nent cap of 20,000 custoners per conpany
so that the initial experience with subscription pricing
can be understood by Evergy, by the Conm ssion and ot her
st akehol ders before extending its availability to other
cust oners.

Addi tional ly, subscription pricing wll be
offered to custoners on a voluntary opt-in basis. W
enphasi ze that. It's on a voluntary opt-in basis for
20,000 custoners in each conmpany. The fixed bill anmount
wi Il be known in advance to all participants nmeaning
there's no risk to participants of an unexpected bil
I ncrease.

Further, non-participants will be virtually
unaf fected by the subscription pricing pilot because any
net change in revenues, whether it's positive or
negative, resulting fromthe subscription pricing pilot
wi || be borne by Evergy's sharehol ders.

Subscription pricing can also facilitate
achi evenent of energy efficiency goals and
sustainability goals by packaging the fixed bill offer

wi th ot her custoner offers such as energy efficiency
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progranms and demand response initiatives, green pricing

offers or EV charging services. The attractiveness of
the fixed bill can be used to draw custonmers to these
more ot her beneficial programs. This concept of
coupling fixed bills with other offers is receiving a
lot of interest today in the electric industry.

Evergy's proposed design also provides for
addi tional add-ons for the custoners to choose,

i ncluding the purchase of a smart thernostat or in the
future the enrol I nent of various other green prograns.
Subscription pricing will be an alternative, or excuse
me, will be an attractive incentive to encourage
customers to consume | ess energy by coupling the pricing
progranms with the other energy efficiency plans.

Conpany witness Ryan Hedik of Brattle
provides detailed testinony on the proposed franmework of
their subscription pricing program H's testinony also
di scusses the plans that are being offered by other
utilities around the country.

And on that, Brian, could you nove to slide 5.
This slide shows where the subscription plans for
electricity are available today in the United States.
You see where the map is. It's largely from M nnesota
to Florida to Texas. For all industries, subscription

econony retail sales growh has been 435 percent between
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the years 2012 and 2021. This is conpared to the

overal|l retail econony which has seen retail sales grow
about 130 percent in the sane period. Subscription
pricing is certainly not an unusual or unattractive
concept to American consumers.

The direct testinony of KimWnslow further
di scusses how subscription pricing fits into the suite
of rate options, rate choices included in Evergy's
moderni zation plan. |t should also be noted that
subscription pricing is different from budget billing.
Wth budget billing, custoners are still charged based
upon their applicable volunetric rate. Budget billing
participants nust pay a true-up at the end of the year
to reconcile their estimated bills with their actual
usage exposing themto any bill changes attributable to
the fluctuations in costs and their usage or other
factors.

Wth subscription pricing, there are no
true-ups and there are no surprises. Customers know
that their flat rate plan will be reeval uated though at
the end of the year to determine if their price needs to
change for the next com ng year

Now, to encourage efficient electricity
consunption, if a participant's weather nornalized usage

does not increase during that 12-nonth term they're
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provi ded an incentive paynent at the end of the 12-nonth

term

Again, this is a programthat could encourage
conservation and efficiency, not a programdesigned to
encourage the use of nore energy. Staff and Public
Counsel w tnesses have opposed giving custoners the
option of a fixed bill under subscription pricing.

Their criticisnms have included custonmers will be
overcharged under subscription pricing. But contrary to
the criticisms of these stakeholders, participants wll
not be overcharged with subscription pricing. | can
only say that so many tines.

Participants will be billed based on
expectations about their future usage with additional
charges to balance the risk that Evergy is assum ng by
offering a fixed, conpletely fixed bill

Can | have slide 6, please. All of the
subscription plans that M. Hedik discusses in his
testinony have such risk premuns ranging fromb5 percent
to 10 percent with nore than half on the screen show ng
a 10 percent premumrisk -- risk prem um charge.

Staff has noted that given the
unpredictability of COVID-19, inflation, and economc
uncertainty staff cannot in good conscience support a

pil ot programthat renoves protections fromthe
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di scl osures mandated by Chapter 13 of the Conmission's

rul es.

M. Hedik explains in his surrebuttal that
the unpredictability of factors such as COVID,
inflation, and other things are exactly what wll make
subscription pricing an attractive offering to
custoners. |f anything, these recent devel opnents that
we' ve all experienced shoul d enhance the appeal of
subscription pricing.

Staff witness Contessa King on pages 12 and 13
of her rebuttal asserts that it will be too conplicated
to explain every charge underlying the subscription
pricing offered to custonmers. And the conpany agrees
very few custoners will have an appetite for a detailed
expl anation of how the conpany projects the expected
usage and how t he weat her normalization process works.
Each subscription pricing charge will be docunmented in
the tariff but it will not be necessary to explain the
nuanced details of howthe fixed bill is determned in
the customer outreach nmaterials. It will be a
straight-forward discussion this is the charge and this
I's how the programwould work for you.

Public Counsel Wtness Marke opposes
subscription pricing on the basis that it does not

| everage AM, which is the issue we heard the other day.
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Dr. Marke ignores the fact that the conpany's AM neters

and the CI'S systens, as well as other analytic software,
will be acritical part of the evaluation of the
subscription pricing program The AM data will be

anal yzed to determ ne how custoners in the pilot are
using the electric systemand how their behaviors may be
changi ng.

Wthout that AM data, the conpany woul d not
be able to fully evaluate the subscription pricing plan.
M. Hedik addresses other criticisms from Staff and
Public Counsel in their surrebuttal. Public Counsel and
Staff comments ignore the value of subscription pricing
to consunmers and overl ook several risk mnimzing
features of the proposal that are inportant for the
Comm ssion to take into account.

But | think there's one overriding point to be
made. Public utilities in this state, including Evergy,
are often criticized by Staff, Public Counsel, or other
st akehol ders as behaving |ike nonopolies and acting |ike
they're the only option in town and not |ike conpetitive
conpanies in a conpetitive marketplace. It's somewhat
surprising that they or the agencies that they represent
woul d now recommend t hat consunmers shoul d not have the
choice to opt in to an innovative, transparent, and

entirely voluntary new rate option that could serve as a
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platformfor a variety of beneficial custoner offerings

inthe future. And it's clearly -- It's a pricing
option that is clearly being used in the conpetitive
mar ket s across the country and across the world. This
Is especially true when Evergy sharehol ders and not

ot her custonmers will bear the risk of any over or under
recovery of the pilot program

In addition, the pilot programwould be capped
at 20,000 custoners per conmpany or about 3 percent of
the conpany's custoners. So it's not huge.

It's al so disappointing that these folks
versus consunmers woul d suggest that they know better
than the custoner what is appropriate in the way they
should be billed. And as we'll hear tonorrow, they know
better that there should be a mandatory tine of use
rate. We'll talk about that tomorrow. Especially in
the Show Me State shoul dn't the custoners have the
option to choose whether they would like to have a
subscription pricing plan.

I n concl usion, Evergy would respectfully
request that the Conm ssion authorize the conpany to
test subscription pricing in the proposed pilot plan and
gi ve consuners another choice in how they pay for their
el ectric service. The conpany, the Conm ssion, and

ot her stakehol ders would be permtted the opportunity to
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study the plan, to evaluate that type of pricing, and

| ook at a plan that's become so popular in other
conpetitive nmarkets and determ ne whether this is an
appropriate way to go for the conpany in the future,
Wth that, Judge, |1'd take any of your questions.

JUDGE HATCHER.  Thank you, M. Fischer. Are
t here any Conm ssioner questions for M. Fischer?

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Yes, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER.  Go ahead.

COW SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  No questions, Judge.

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  On new construction
coul d soneone subscribe to this plan if they have new
construction because you have no history?

MR. FISCHER: You know, |'mgoing to have to
give that to KimWnslow. | think they do need to have
a history.

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Ckay. Thank you.

MR. FI SCHER. But she can answer that for
sure.

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Ckay. Thank you,
Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Conm ssioner. Are
there any other Conm ssioner questions for M. Fischer?

COW SSI ONER RUPP:  Judge, this is

Conmi ssioner Rupp. | have a quick question.
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JUDGE HATCHER: (Go ahead, Conm ssi oner.

COMWM SSI ONER RUPP:  Thank you, sir. You had
mentioned in the very beginning of your opening, |
didn't catch it quick enough to wite it down, you said
that this plan cane out of a study. D d you say a study
you did in 20207

MR, FISCHER: The rate nodernization plan is
what | was referring to. Yeah, that goes back to 2020.
It was al so discussed, if you recall, we had a tine of
use rate design presentation that we presented to the
Commi ssion and | think we mentioned that all these
prograns were part of that nodernization plan.

COW SSI ONER RUPP:  How many studies did the
conpany undertake to come up with this plan?

MR, FI SCHER: You know, Brad Lutz may be our
best witness on that. W certainly studied time of use
a |l ot and whether the subscription pricing plan, they've
been studying the literature and what's happening in
other states and, of course, in all the other
conpetitive markets where it's used today. It's grow ng
rapidly. And | know Chuck Caisley will be here
tonorrow. He is the appropriate guy that has |ooked at
all of this. I'msure he'd be happy to answer any of
your questions about that.

COW SSI ONER RUPP:  Yeah. | was just curious
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because you guys did 14 studies to cone up with TOU

rates that you're still talking about, and I was curious
if this cane froma study you did two years ago and what
the difference was of trying to have custonmers use |ess
energy but you quickly came up with a programto have
themuse unlimted energy.

MR FISCHER We'd like to, of course, also
partner that with energy efficiency plans and | ook at
that in the future too. Yeah, M. Caisley is a good
person to ask those kinds of questions to, Conm ssioner
Rupp.

COMM SSI ONER RUPP: Al right. [I'll reserve
those until he's on the stand. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Conm ssioner. Any
ot her Conmi ssioner questions? Hearing none. Thank you,
M. Fischer.

MR, FI SCHER: Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER. Next we have Staff counsel

MS. MERS: Good norning. My it please the
Comm ssion. M nane is Nicole Mers and | am
representing staff. And | would like to note that | am
alittle concerned that Evergy appears to be offering
Chuck Caisley as a wtness on this issue tonorrow but
not today.

So | think that we m ght perhaps need to take

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

] . ) . Page 483
a break if that is, in fact, what | was hearing

correctly about plans. Honestly I think it would put
sone parties at a disservice not to have him presented
today with the other witnesses on this issue.

Today we're going to hear an issue that after
14 studies, two rate cases, a rate design case, a
mul titude of working groups, and countless statements by
Commi ssioners and stakehol ders that Evergy ignores the
clear witing on the wall regarding the benefits and
appropriateness of time of use rates and instead today
Evergy proposes to begin an unlimted energy usage pl an,
the subscription pilot program

This programis contrary to the clear
I ndi cations regarding energy efficiency and cost-based
rates and is not just a step but a fall backwards into
regressive nonefficient rates. Contrary to the rate
moder ni zation plan that Evergy touts, this subscription
pilot programis an archaic design that provides a cash
streamto sharehol ders, does not send clear pricing
signals to customers, and does not provide any
transparency as it rolled all riders such as the FAC,
the RES RAMfor GMO, et cetera, and surcharges into one
rate and it offers to refund custoners a portion of the
bill inflation under certain circunstances which are not

subject to any regul atory oversight while depriving
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cust oners of any I ncentive to nanage their energy usage.

This rate renders the last three cycles of
M EAA i nvestment meaningless as it does not encourage
peak usage reduction or any usage reduction at all. In
fact, the only major benefit the conpany can point to is
stability which customers can currently achi eve under
the budget billing paynent options.

VWhat Evergy is actually proposing is to
overcharge residential custoners, renove their
I ncentives to manage load or limt consunption and
retain those proceeds for sharehol ders while passing the
cost of at least 150 per participant on to
nonparticipants. So it is not, in fact, harnless to al
ot her custonmers as Evergy asserted.

At the sanme time, those sane nonparticipants
are paying for custoners to nanage their |oad or
ot herwi se install energy efficiency neasures as part of
M EAA. As a rem nder, that M EAA charge includes
program cost and adm nistrative costs, which OPC has
recently noted outspends not only all other conparable
utilities but to spend itself on programcosts. And
Evergy al so earns a bonus incentive in the formof the
earni ngs opportunity for offering the MEAA program So
that's three cycles nearly ten years of cost for all

gains to be eroded by prograns such as this energy
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bi ngi ng subscri ption nodel .

As staff's rate design and class cost of
service expert Sarah Lange states, this programis a bad
Idea with a bad design for no real end goal. |If the
Conmi ssion decides to let Evergy play in this arena,
Evergy shoul d bear any cost of that decision. Staff
cannot in good conscience support this pilot program
especially since it is remving all protections and
di scl osures under the Rule 13 billing and paynent
standards. It's inportant that custoners are
knowl edgeabl e on their energy usage and Conmi ssion rules
require utilities to provide customers billing
information and statements with detailed information on
their consunption

Monthly bills based on actual usage provide
the information that can enpower custonmers to nmake
I nfornmed deci sions about their usage and what
conservation considerations they can take.

Additional ly, participants can over or
underpay while on this program Taking into account the
potential for overpaynment particularly through the
adders at this time staff does not support residential
custoners paying nore than actually used not even if it
Is on a voluntary basis.

Staff has rai sed concerns about the education
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customers are receiving regarding principles of cost

causation and how prepared Evergy customers will be in
the inevitable progression towards cost-based rates and
tinme of use rates. Staff has serious concerns about
this program being yet another rate option that is being
mar ket ed towards custonmers but w thout educating those
cust oners.

OPC al so notes sone of those same concerns
regardi ng signals and expectations that this wll
provide custoners as part of their continued concerns
about the nmethods and efforts that Evergy has undertaken
to market but not educate for tine of use and other
progr ans.

Staff also has very strong concerns that this
rate is unlawful in nmultiple regards. First, this rate
coul d be considered an untariffed rate in violation of
the filed tariff doctrine. Wat staff nmeans by this is
that the participating custoners are charged a flat rate
per nonth but not a rate per kwh. Wth the floating
subj ective adders and projected based usage, which is
grossed up at Evergy's discretion, custoners do not have
a calculable rate for service.

Staff's second concern is this rate is
discrimnatory. Participants nay ultimtely pay a

hi gher or lower rate for electric service than other
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simlarly situated custonmers. For instance, a

subscription pricing participant that |ived al one may
have their energy usage based on the last 12 nonths of
living as a single person in an individual househol d.
That same participant could nmarry perhaps sonmebody wth
a child and increase their househol d usage by doubl e.
This participant, however, because as you heard M.

Fi scher state, there's no true-up for under or over
recovery will pay less for the same amount of electric
usage than a nonparticipant famly of three with simlar
usage patterns woul d.

The converse situation could easily be
I magi ned where due to a child going to college or a
simlar situation usage is reduced yet other than a
potential $70 credit a participant would pay nore than
simlarly situated nonparticipants.

Finally, as noted in Ms. Lange's rebutta
testinony, the efficient incentive provision appears to
violate Statute 386.266.1 if offered by either Evergy
Metro or West while they have a fuel adjustnent clause,
and that statute states that subject to the requirenent
of this section, any electric corporation nay make an
application to the comm ssion to approve rate schedul es
authorizing an interimenergy charge or a periodic rate

adj ust ment outside of general rate proceedings to
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reflect increases and decreases in its prudently

i ncurred fuel and purchased power cost. An energy
efficient incentive in this case is defined as if the
customer' s weat her normalized usage does not increase
during the 12-nonth period, the annual behavi or usage
adder will be paid back to the customer in the form of
the efficiency incentive.

Participants qualify for the efficiency
I ncentive based on a conparison of their weather
normal i zed usage during the 12-nmonth contract termto
the historical weather normalization usage during the
prior 12 nonths. And that historically is conparable to
what we've seen used or described as interimenergy
charges as used in the statute.

The concept of that in the past has been that
a portion of a custoner's bill would be subject to
refund if energy prices fell within a tariff specified
band. Further, as Staff Wtness Sarah Lange can testify
to, the tariffs proposed by Evergy are inadequate.
Formul as, val ues, and procedures for weat her
normal i zation are unspecified discretionary charges
abound in audits of each custoner's unique untariffed
rates determned by the utility w thout regul atory
oversi ght are inpossible.

This programis unreasonable and the
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Comm ssion should send a strong signal to Evergy that

rate innovation cannot cone at the expense of gains made
In other areas such as MEAA nor result in rates
becom ng further msaligned with principles of cost
causation. The Conm ssion should reject this program
and instead order Evergy to pursue true cost based rates
I n nodernization with staff's rate design which will be
heard later in this week.

Today Contessa King and Sarah Lange will be
avail able for questions. M. King will be happy to
di scuss any inprovenments to the Evergy average paynent
plan to hel p address any concerns that perhaps maybe
doesn't provide all of the options a consuner could want
but has nore safeguards and | ess of the downfalls of
this particular proposal.

And Ms. Lange can wal k you through the
I nadequaci es of the tariff and the proposed revenue
treatnment that Evergy is suggesting. | can also try to
answer any questions you may have. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Ms. Mers. Are
there any Conm ssioner questions? All right. Hearing
none. Thank you. We'Il go ahead and call for our next
m ni opening. Renew M ssouri .

MS. GREENWALD: Renew M ssouri does not have

an opening statenent for this issue. Thank you, Judge.
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JUDGE HATCHER. Thank you. That nobves us to

M. Cizer, Ofice of the Public Counsel

MR CLIZER May it please the Comm ssion. As
you said, John Clizer on behalf of the Ofice of the
Public Counsel. So Ms. Mers on behal f of staff did a
really good job of summing up all the major points
want to hit. [|'mnot going to spend a whole lot of time
up here. I'mjust going to hit the high points. | want
to start off by just rem nding the Conm ssion where we
are right now.

W' ve spent so far hundreds of mllions of
dollars on advanced netering and infrastructure or AM
meters. The conpany is proposing to spend hundreds of
mllions of nore dollars to replace all of those
existing AM neters again before the end of their useful
life.

W' ve spent over 300 mllion -- sorry, nearly
$300 million on the billing systemthat's designed to
unl ock the benefits of features of AM, especially
having tine of use rates. W' ve spent mllions of
dollars on 14 different studies, as | believe
Comm ssioner Rupp identified, extolling the benefits of
time of use rates. W've spent and continue to spend
mllions of dollars on Evergy's Mssouri Energy

Efficiency Investment Act, or MEAA surcharge that are
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desi gned at reducing overall usage and shavi ng peak.

Al of this nmoney we've spent we've spent with
this general idea of achieving real benefits for all
customers, and specifically these investments were
premsed on the idea that a utility could send a clear
price signal to customers that woul d influence usage,
| ower peak, reduce the need for new generating
I nvestments and thereby lower bills. The current
proposal throws all of that out the window. | nean, at
this point we have had to have spent nearly half a
billion dollars just trying to get tine of use rates.

Subscription pricing, and | stress this, is
the antithesis of tine of use rates, and with tine of
use you need your AM so you can have granul ar
hour - by- hour data, mnute-by-mnute data to inform when
people are charging. Wth this subscription pricing,
you don't need any of that. You're using a yearly basis
-- yearly average, sorry, as your basis. You don't need
to consider, you know, how nuch tine you consunmed on a
day- by-day, week-by-week, nonth-by-nonth |evel.

Counsel for Evergy suggested that the AM
meters will be utilized to determne the efficiency of
subscription pricing. Wll, they will only as far as
they are meters. That's all you really need is just to

have neters. \Wether or not they are AM or not was not
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going to really provide any neaningful data to us
whet her or not subscription pricing is working.
Like | said, I'mgoing to touch very briefly

on some of the things that staff has al ready nentioned.
There are |legal problens here. This proposal
essentially breaks the FAC, the MEAA the RES RAM and
I f and when you have securitization it breaks that as
well. Wien | say that, |I mean that those costs are
going to be baked into the rate which is supposed to be
hel d constant through the year but then those costs are
al so subject to change. So if your FAC increases during
the year, you can't increase the anount that's baked
Into the subscription right because that's being held
constant. So the conpany is just proposing to eat the
difference, which is that how things are going to
proceed noving forward after the pilot ends, because the
conpany has al ways been pretty insistent on having to
have the FAC and all of a sudden we're being told no,
the conpany is okay with eating all of the increases
t hat happen outside of a rate case that aren't being
recovered through the base rates. That seens
particularly odd.

One of the things | want to touch on, you
know, Evergy nakes a big deal about energy efficiency,

this is going to pronote and i nprove energy efficiency.
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It's not renotely. Let's start with the fact that

Evergy's big push is to say well, we can couple this
offering with a ot of other energy efficiency prograns.
Do | need to explain why that makes no sense? | nean,

If the energy efficiency benefit is just we'll offer

ot her prograns at the same tine, just offer the other
progranms. You've al ready achieved the energy efficiency
benefit at that point. So how does this programitself
approve energy efficiency? | nean, it doesn't.

The conpany has an energy efficiency
i ncentive. How does that incentive work? Well, the
proposal is that the conpany is going to determ ne how
much it costs to provide you energy and then it's going
to charge you 5 percent nore. And if at the end of the
year you haven't increased your usage, you get your 5
percent back. It's not a discount, mnd you. It's
effectively a rebate. Wat's really inportant here it
doesn't matter if your usage goes down. It just has to
be consi stent.

So if youlive in a highly inefficient hone
and you don't change your habits and the conpany
successfully normalizes for weather, you' re going to
have consistent usage even if you're still being highly
inefficient and you'll earn your energy efficiency

incentive regardless. | nean, it just nakes no darn
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sense.

| also want to briefly touch on the concept of
budget billing. | know that the conpany suggested
they're not the sane thing and specifically honed in on
the idea that well, in budget billing you have a true-up
and we don't have a true-up here. Well, why is there
not a true-up here. The answer to that, as the conpany
al ready explained, is because they're just sticking a 10
percent adder on to whatever they think it's going to
cost themto provide energy. They are charging
custoners 110 percent of what they believe custoners
wi || actually spend or need for energy usage and they
don't need the true-up because it's already baked in.
And the best part for the conpany is that 10 percent
Isn't subject to refund. So if a custoner doesn't
I ncrease usage or decreases usage, if you actually get
energy efficiency, the conpany just pockets that 10
percent along with all of the other reduced costs that
they woul d ot herwi se have flown back to custoners under
a normal billing practice.

By the way, that also nakes it incredibly odd
to ne that the conpany would tell you that they're not
overcharging customers. \Wen the basis of the charge is
we' re going to charge custonmers 110 percent of what we

think it cost to provide themenergy, that is
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overcharging them You' re overcharging themthe 10

percent. | don't know how nuch nore easily I can
explain that.

(kay. Like | said, | don't really need to
cover all of these grounds too awfully much. | think
staff counsel has done a wonderful job of doing it and
" mgoing to cut things short here.

As you heard, Staff and OPC are pretty nmuch in
| ockstep here and | strongly encourage the Conmi ssion to
ask questions of either and both of us really. W're
going to present two of our witnesses and | believe
staff is going to present two of theirs and all four are
going to tell you howthis is a bad idea. Not just for
participants but for nonparticipants. And | strongly
encourage the Conmm ssion to ask any questions you m ght
have of all four of those wi tnesses. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, M. Cdizer. Are
t here any Comm ssioner questions for M. Cizer?

Hearing none. Thank you, sir.

| believe we turn nowto our witnesses. So
we'll go to the conpany first.

MR, FI SCHER: Thank you, Judge. Qur first
witness is Ryan Hedik. He's going to be on the web.

So | think I1"d like to bring himup. Looks [ike he's on

the screen now. Can you hear me, Ryan?
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THE WTNESS: | can. Good norning. Can you

hear ne?

MR. FI SCHER: Yes, yes, thank you. May I
proceed, Judge?

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes, go ahead.

MR. FI SCHER: Pl ease state and spell your name
for the record.

JUDGE HATCHER | need to swear himin.

MR FISCHER: I|'msorry. Go ahead.

JUDGE HATCHER It has been a heck of a
mor ni ng. Wl come back. Long weekend. M. Hedik
pl ease raise your right hand.

Do you solemly swear or affirmto tell the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

THE WTNESS: Yes, | do.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, sir. You are sworn
in. M. Fischer, your wtness.

MR, FI SCHER: Thank you, Judge.

RYAN HLEDI K
having been first duly sworn, was examned and testified
as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR FI SCHER:
Q Pl ease state and spell your name for the

record.

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

© o0 ~N oo o B~ W N B

N I R R S I - T N e e e e N e
ga A~ W N b O © 00 N oo 0o M W DD -+ o

) _ Page 497
A My name is Ryan Hedik, Ry-a-n. The |ast

name is HIl-e-d-i-Kk.

Q Are you the same Ryan H edik that caused to be
filed in this case direct testinony and surrebuttal
testinony which has been marked as Exhibit 37 and 38 in
the Metro case and Exhibit No. 112 in the M ssouri West
case?

A | am

Q That woul d be direct. Do you have any
corrections or changes you need to nake to any of that
testinony?

A No, | don't.

Q If | were to ask you the questions that are
contained in those witten testinonies, would your
answers be the sane and are they true and accurate to
the best of your know edge and belief?

A Yes, they are.

MR FI SCHER: Judge, with that | would nove
for the adm ssion of the Exhibits 37, 38 in the Metro
case and Exhibit 112 in the Wst case and tender
M. Hedik for cross-exam nation questions fromthe
Conmi ssi on.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. "Il restate that
for the record and conbine the question. Are there any

objections to the adm ssion of Exhibit 37 or Exhibit 38
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associated with file ending in 0129, Evergy Metro, or

are there any objections to the adm ssion of Exhibit 112

to file related to Evergy M ssouri Wst 01307

Heari ng

no objections, it's so admtted.

(COVPANY EXHI BI' TS 37, 38, AND 112 WERE

RECEI VED | NTO EVI DENCE AND MADE A PART OF THI S RECORD. )

JUDGE HATCHER: The wi tness has been tendered.

And | believe on ny list we go next to staff.

M ssouri .

M5. MERS. No questions. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And Renew

MS5. GREENWALD: No questions. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you. And the Ofice of

t he Public Counsel.

you.

MR CLIZER: No questions at this time. Thank

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you. And we'll go to

Comm ssi oner questions. Are there any Conm ssioner

questions for M. H edik?

Conmi ssi oners on the phone,

it is *6 to unnute

Hol sman.

JUDGE HATCHER: The bench does --

COMM SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  No questi ons, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Conmi ssioner

The bench does have a coupl e questi ons.
QUESTI ONS
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BY JUDGE HATCHER

Q M. Hedik, just in general, could you
descri be what protections there would be for ratepayers
agai nst whatever bad debt could be created, any unpaid
bills that are left?

A Specifically are you asking about situations
where custoners enroll in subscription pricing and then
are unable to continue to pay the nonthly subscription
pricing amount ?

Q No. |'mtalking about the hypothetical of
what ever nunber of subscribers use or take advantage
purposeful |y or otherw se using energy and then due to
there not being a true-up they cancel their account.
That | eaves the conpany with an unpaid bill. [I'm
wondering how does that unpaid bill basically get paid?
I's that a ratepayer obligation or a sharehol der
obl i gati on?

A Yes. So ny understanding at a high level is
that that is a sharehol der obligation that essentially,
you know, undercollecting revenue fromparticipants and
subscription pricing is a risk that sharehol ders are
bearing in this program but | would defer to Brad Lutz
or KimWnslow on the details of that treatnent.

Q Ckay. That mght inpact the next question,

\WWhat does the conpany intend to do to cover overages in
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usage that's going to -- not just the bad debt but now

iIf there's just any overage in that annual usage?

A By "overage," do you nean specifically a
situation where a custonmer consunes nore than is
expected under the subscription pricing tariff?

Q Yes.

A In that situation, the way the subscription
pricing tariff is designed, you probably heard this in
t he opening comments, is it includes an adder that
anticipates some potential |evel of increase in usage.
That adder is currently set at 5 percent. As you heard,
I f the custoner's usage doesn't increase during the
12-month term that adder is returned to the custoner in
the formof the efficiency payment. If the custoner's
usage increases and is wthin that 5 percent range, then
the cost of that increase is covered by the adder and it
I's essentially paid for by the participants in the
program |f the customer's usage exceeds that 5 percent
adder, then that means there were additional costs
I nposed on the systemor an undercol | ection of revenue
relative to what that participant woul d have paid under
the standard tariff and that is covered by Evergy's
shar ehol ders.

Q Ckay. And on the other side of the |edger

how were the end-of-the-year credits cal cul ated?
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A So at the end of the year, at the end of the

12 nmonths, the participant's usage for that 12-nonth
period is weather normalized. And it is then conpared
to that customer's weather normalized usage for the year
prior to enrolling in subscription pricing. And if that
weat her normal i zed usage during the 12-nonth
subscription pricing period is the sanme or |ess than
their weather nornmalized usage fromthe 12 nonths prior,
then the customer is paid the full efficiency incentive
anmount .

Q And | want to make sure that it's clear for
the record. How is a custoner's subscription price
det erm ned?

A The way the customer subscription price is
determned is first for any custoner who's receiving a
subscription pricing offer Evergy will |ook at the
customer's 12 nost recent nonths of usage, their past
year of usage, and weather normalize that usage anmount.
At that point when you have 12 nonths of weat her
nornal i zed usage for the customer, Evergy applies the
standard applicable residential rate to those 12 nonths
of usage to calculate what the custoner's bill would be
under the standard rate with 12 nonths of weather
nornmal i zed usage. Then to that amount is added the 5

percent behavioral adder that builds in protection

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

) ) . ~ Page 502
around custoners using nore under subscription pricing.

There's a risk prem um associated not just with

behavi oral changes in usage but to address the risk that
it could be a hotter than average summer, a col der than
average winter, or that other costs such as the fuel

adj ustment cl ause or other rider prices could increase
during that 12-nonth termso that the second adder in
addition to behavioral adder is the risk prem um
Earlier it was characterized as 10 percent. That's
actually a cap, a not-to-exceed cap of 10 percent. 1In a
response to a data request in this proceeding, |

provi ded sone information indicating that it |ikely
woul d be below 5 percent. So the risk premumis the
second adder and then there's a third adder which we
refer to as the program cost adder which recovers a
portion of the cost of adm nistering the subscription
pricing program admn fee, nmarketing and general
program over head.

So the point of that programcost adder is to
ensure that at least in the pilot phase a portion of the
cost of adm nistering the programis being recovered
fromparticipants and not from other customers. The
Idea is when the programis fully deployed and is at
scale that that program cost adder woul d be sufficient

to fully recover the cost of this programfrom
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part|C|pants so that there's no |npact on part|0|pants.

But initially when this is still at the scale of the
pilot, that program cost adder will cover a portion of
t hose program costs.

So to summarize all of this, there's the
initial estimate of the custoner's bill based on the
standard rate and weat her nornmalized usage. There's
then the behavioral adder, the risk prem um the program
adder, and then the standard fixed custonmer charge. Al
of those are added up to equate to the custoner's total
annual bill and then it's divided by 12 to give the
customer their nonthly fixed bill offered.

Q Thank you. |s a custoner able to cancel their
subscription at any tinme?

A They are able to cancel their subscription at
any time. The way we've witten the tariff thereis --
Evergy has the right to charge the custoner a fee for
canceling earlier than the 12 nonths, but the custoners
do have that option. And that fee is at Evergy's
discretion. So if customers were to nove within the
service territory or |eave the service territory, those
are exanples of situations where the fee likely would
not apply.

Q And how are custoners going to be nade aware

of the usage? W had talked a little bit about sone
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concerns with using energy nore efficiently. So how

woul d a customer track their usage if they' re interested

in that?
A Yeah, no, that's a great question. | would
defer to KimWnslow on that question. | believe there

are plans to continue to provide custonmers with data on
their usage, but | defer to a conpany w tness on that.

Q Ckay. And | want to talk a little bit about
the other jurisdictions where this is already in effect.
Can you give me sone background or flavor how custoners
have received a subscription pricing program how the
utilities have dealt with it, just give ne kind of the
t hunbnai | overview, please.

A Sure. So in ny direct testinony | believe |
Identified, you saw the map of the utilities offering
subscription pricing in the opening coments, | believe
there are 13 different jurisdictions or exanples of the
subscription pricing offers that exist in the U S.
today. As | think about it, there are two buckets.
There's generally a | egacy set of subscription pricing
offers that are essentially just the fixed bill. And
there are utilities that have been offering those
prograns for years and in sonme cases a couple decades
and custonmers get that fixed nmonthly bill with no

true-up but there's no additional packaging with energy
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efficiency incentives or other types of offers.

| think the most well known exanple of that
first category of subscription pricing offers is a plan
that's offered by Georgia Power and they've been
offering their programfor awhile and have reached a
point where | think 13 or 14 percent of their entire
residential custoner base, a few hundred thousand
customers, have voluntarily enrolled in that program
So that's an exanple that denonstrates general custoner
interest in the idea of a fixed bill.

Ceorgia Power and the other utilities in that
list also offer budget billing which is simlar in
concept to Evergy's average paynent plan. So the
Ceorgi a Power case in particular highlights that there's
roomfor both types of offers on the utility's tariff.

The second category of subscription pricing
options are the category that have energed nore recently
and are the category that | would put Evergy's proposal
Into. Those proposals include this concept of packaging
the fixed bill with sonething else that is intended to
achieve the conpany's or the state's energy goals. So
an exanple that | like is a subscription pricing offer
that's provided by Xcel Energy to custonmers in their
M nnesota service territory. It's a pilot at this

poi nt .
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VWhat Evergy has done is they have given

customers -- it's designed for customers with electric
vehicles. And they offer customers a fixed bill for
el ectric vehicle charging but the EV charging has to
happen during off-peak hours. [If custoners charge
during peak hours, then they pay a prem umfor that
electricity. Soit's areally interesting exanple of a
utility leveraging this fixed bill concept with the idea
that you can use that fixed bill to draw in custoners
who are attracted to that predictability and that
stability but to do it ina way that will encourage
energy use that benefits the system
So Xcel Energy's case is one good exanple.

There's sone other utilities that have coupl ed
subscription pricing wth clean energy tariffs where
custonmers can basically ensure that their energy is
bei ng met by renewabl es or other clean sources of energy
inreturn for receiving that fixed bill. | put Evergy's
offer into this category because it includes both energy
efficiency incentive and as we've discussed this
additional option to roll a smart thernostat into that
package as well.

Q Thank you. |Is it possible that the customner
who signs up to take this rate could end up worse of f

for taking this rate rather than nore traditional rate
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once they add up their flat rate charges plus all of the

different extra add-ons either that they choose or that
come wWith the progranf

A It depends on how you define worse off. It is
possi bl e that when you include those other adders that
the customer's bill under subscription pricing could be
hi gher than it woul d have been under the standard
tariff. It could be because of those adders or it could
be because it just turned out to be a very mld weather
year so the custoner's usage was | ower than expected.
The reason | say it depends on whether or not that
customer is worse off is fromthe narrow perspective of
their bill or just financially, you could consider them
to be worse off in that specific scenario but regardl ess
of what happened with the custoner's usage, they receive
the benefit of having that entirely fixed and stable
bill. So even in that situation the custoner has had
the benefit of knowi ng that exactly what they'll be
payi ng each nonth, they've been able to budget around
that, and they've had the peace of mnd of just know ng
what their bill is going to be each nonth and have taken
that uncertainty conpletely out of the transaction. So
fromthat broader perspective fromthe custonmer's
standpoint there's a benefit associated with all of

t hat .
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Q Thank you. And | believe this is ny |ast

question. Can you square away the apparent

i nconsi stency of what we'd heard in opening statements
Evergy pursuing transparency, pursuing tine of use,
giving custonmers nore information so that the custoner
controls or has the ability to ook at their energy
usage with this proposal ?

A Sure. So ny first comrent on that is
subscription pricing is not intended to be a repl acenent
for or conpetition with tinme of use pricing. And ny
general sense is that subscription pricing, an entirely
fixed bill, is likely to appeal to a very different
subset of Evergy's population than time of use pricing
whi ch provides that actionable price signal that you can
respond to to reduce your bill. So kind of in a sense
if you think of a then diagramof Evergy's custoners, |
just intuitively suspect that there is not a | ot of
overlap between those custoners who would get excited
about the bill savings opportunities fromtine of use
rates and the stability, transparency, and
predictability of subscription pricing.

So the idea is to understand that custonmers in
Evergy's service territory and everywhere are diverse,
not all custoners have the sane preferences, and so the

idea is to neet custonmers where they are and to give
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themthe options that will be meaningful and valuable to

them That's the first comment | have. But to address
the point about there being a lack of price signal or
subscription pricing appearing to incentivize increases
In energy use, | think the first point to nake there is
the reason for the efficiency incentive is to address
that concern, to step in and do sonething that no ot her
utility is offering in their subscription pricing offers
and to directly include that financial incentive for
custoners to manage their energy use. So there is that
el ement. The other thing to point out there is
custoners also -- it wll be clear to custoners when
they sign up for subscription pricing that their
subscription pricing offer is based on their usage from
the prior 12 nmonths. So if during the 12-nonth
subscription pricing termthe custoner's usage does

I ncrease, their next subscription pricing offer a year

| ater is going to be higher. That should for many
customers act as a mtigating factor wth respect to

I ncreasi ng energy use.

And then lastly | think the other point I
woul d like to nmake is, you know, as we've discussed,
subscription pricing, it does include the efficiency
incentive, it also includes the smart thernostat add-on.

To ne that's the first step in Evergy's subscription
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pricing offer. It's necessary to start with something

that has relatively limted inplenentation risk and can
be rolled out relatively quickly just to get some
initial experience with this tariff, because it's not an
Insignificant step even just to roll out a fixed nmonthly
bill. Behind the scenes that involves a ot of work in
order to make sure that that works well fromthe
customer's standpoint. So including the energy
efficiency incentive on top of that, including the smart
thernostat add-on on top of that, in nmy mnd that's a
realistic first step for a pilot but as the second step
and as the third step | view subscription pricing as
being a tool for promoting not just basic energy
efficiency but also demand response and finding ways to
couple that smart thernostat offer with a demand
response opportunity that allows the custoner to reduce
their bill further or to incorporate other financial
I ncentives for using energy at the tines when it
benefits the system To ne this is a platform it has a
realistic starting point and provides the sane -- a
different but simlar opportunity to encourage efficient
energy use as time varying rates do.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. Hedik. That
wi Il take us to recross-exam nation, and again we wl|

skip over those parties who have been excused.
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| believe that takes us to Renew M ssouri .

MS. GREENVALD: No questions, Your Honor.
JUDGE HATCHER  Staff.
MS. MERS. Very briefly.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. MERS:

Q I n response to a bench question about the
concerns about energy efficiency you pointed to the $70
or 5 percent return as a possible incentive to encourage
energy efficiency. WII| the custoner's usage if they're
on this programbe on their bill?

A WII the custonmer's usage during the 12-nonth
subscription pricing period be presented back to them on
their bill, is that the question?

Q Yeah, their current usage fromeach nonth be
on their bill?

A | believe that's the case, but for the
definitive answer | would defer to a conpany w tness Kim
Wnsl ow or Brad Lutz.

Q Since the historical usage is the baseline, is
that usage, historical usage on their bills repeated?

A In terms of bill presentment, | defer to an
Evergy witness on that.

M5. MERS: (kay. Thank you very nuch.
JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you. And M. i zer
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MR. CLIZER (Good afternoon. | have been told

that it's properly pronounced Hedik; is that correct?

THE WTNESS: H edik.

MR CLIZER Hedik. | apologize. | will do
nmy best to keep that consistent. ['mvery bad with
names t hough

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR CLIZER

Q In response to a question fromthe bench, you
kind of went into the details of how exactly the base
bill is determned. Do you recall that?

A | do, yeabh.

Q One of the conponents of that is the risk
prem um adder, right, and | know there was a
di sagreenent as to how nuch that is. You pointed out
it's 10 percent cap and gave a | ower nunber. Do you
recal | discussing it?

A | do.

Q I's that risk prem um adder set by the conmpany
or by the Conm ssion?

A The conpany woul d cal cul ate the risk prem um
| would -- | think that question would probably be best
answered by an Evergy conmpany W tness.

Q Wul d you al so then, you mght defer this one

as well, is the risk prem um adder changed year after
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year ?

A Yes. Yeah, as Evergy gathers nore data on
customer usage, also as Evergy devel ops nore experience
with subscription pricing wwth the programitself, wth
the pilot, then that risk prem umwoul d be updated.

Q So the amount charged woul d change in between
rate cases based on how Evergy changed the risk prem um
adder, correct?

A The anmount presented to -- the subscription
pricing offer presented to customers who are interested
in enrolling could change between rate cases.

Q Al'l right. You were asked a question fromthe
bench about a custonmer being worse off, and | know that
you di scussed the difference between financial and ot her
broader perspectives. | just want to run through a
qui ck hypothetical with you though, if you don't m nd.

Can we assune that there's a custonmer on
subscription pricing who to keep things sinple we'll
assunme $100 is what it takes to provide that custoner
service fromjust an energy perspective. To clarify
that | guess | should say if you take their average
annual usage and multiply it by the rate plus the riders
and divide by 12, the answer is 100. Do you follow nme?

A | follow that, yes.

Q Ckay. And | want to make sure | understand
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this correctly. To that hundred you would add the 5

percent behavi oral usage adder, right, which in this
case woul d be about $5?

A Sorry. The hundred is based on the
custoner's, you said their weather normalized usage?

Q | did not say that but | did nmean it. [|'m
sorry. Yeah, that is their weather nornmalized usage,
correct.

A Uh- huh.

Q Ckay. So it's $105. Then we're going to add
on the risk prem um adder, and | understand that you
saying it's not automatically 10 percent but because 10
percent makes math work a hell of a lot better, let's
say 10 percent in this case. So we add $10 for that
adder, right, assumng again a 10 percent risk prem um
adder ?

A Yeah. | guess | would just nake the point |
think it's very unlikely that the risk premumw]l| be
10 percent. Based on our calculations of the risk
prem um usi ng current conpany data and al so based on
what |'ve observed fromother utilities that have a cap
of around 10 percent, | think it's much nore likely to
be less than 5 percent than it is anywhere near 10
percent.

Q "1l meet you in the mddle. Let's call it 5
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percent to just keep things rolling, right, so we can

t hrow another $5 on there. Do you agree with me so far?

A That's still more than the risk prem umthat
we cal cul at ed.

Q All right. Well, I"'mgoing to keep rolling
here if you don't mnd. Then we're going to add the
$2.50. That's the program adder, right?

A Again, it's up to $2.50 in the tariff.

Q Well, bear with me here to nake things sinple.
So at this point the custoner is being charged $112.50 a
month. Do you fol | ow?

A Based on your assunptions, yes.

Q Yes. Based on ny assunptions, | want to make
that very clear, I"'mnot trying to suggest this is
automatical ly what the custoner would be paying. A
right. So if the custoner then undertakes to inprove
the efficiency of his hone, for exanple, by buying a
more efficient air-conditioner. Let's say that that
woul d reduce the overall usage such that under a norna
circunmst ances they woul d pay on average $80 a nonth. Do
you follow me under these circunstances so far?

A So they' ve inplenmented sone extreme efficiency
measures that have reduced their weather normalized
annual energy usage by 20 percent?

Q Yes.
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A Ckay.

Q Now, under how this system woul d work, the
custoner would still continue paying his full $112.50
until the end of the year at which point he would
receive back the $5 a nonth he had spent on the
behavi oral usage because he reduced his overall usage,
right?

A Yes, he woul d receive the efficiency
I ncentive.

Q Right. So we can basically say that the
custoner has spent 107.50 a year once you take off the
$5 behavioral usage. Do you agree with ne?

A 107.50 per nonth per year.

Q Correct. |'msorry. But the conpany has only
spent $80 actually providing himservice or rather if he
had been on traditional rates, he would have only paid
$80, correct?

A |'s the assunption here that literally on day
one of the subscription pricing offer that the custoner
installs this 20 percent energy efficiency neasure?

Q For the sake of sinplicity, |'mgoing to have
to say yes. | wll concede to you that depending on
when he woul d have installed it he would have had | esser
or nore savings. The point I'mtrying to get to, and |

think you would agree with nme, is that under nornal
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rates he woul d have paid substantially |ess, correct?

A Under the standard rate with that efficiency
measure, the customer would have paid | ess than under
subscription pricing, yes.

Q Right. And the difference is it your
under st andi ng the conpany woul d just keep, correct?

A For that customer in that year, the conpany,

t he conpany woul d keep the difference, but then in the
second year that custoner would receive a new
subscription pricing offer that woul d be based on their
reduced usage during the prior year. So the point is if
a customer is nmaking a 20-year energy efficiency

I nvest nent, subscription pricing doesn't result in
collecting in your exanple the $107.50 in perpetuity.
That year two offer is adjusted accordingly.

Q Agreed. But in the interimin that first year
t he conpany woul d keep the difference, correct?

A Yes. |If there's a custoner who signs up for
subscription pricing and then i mmedi ately reduces their
-- decides to invest in energy efficiency, that woul d be
t he case.

Q And a customer on a traditional rate would
receive those benefits i mediately upon naking the
switch, correct?

A What do you mean by those benefits? |'m
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sorry.

Q Sorry. They woul d receive the reduction in
rates i medi ately upon naking the energy efficiency
I nvest ment ?

A For custoners who continue to accept the risk
associated with the standard rate, their bill would drop
when the energy efficiency investnent was nmade and those
energy savi ngs appear ed.

Q Thank you.

A Again, this is we're tal king about everything
on a weather normalized basis. This story could be very
different if it turned out to be a very hot summer or
cold winter. Under those circunstances even if the
custoner has adopted an energy efficiency neasure, it
still could end up being the case that that customner
woul d pay | ess under subscription pricing than they
woul d under the standard tariff because their usage
woul d have increased due to that hot sunmmer and they
woul dn't have had to pay for it because they had | ocked
in the 12-nonth subscription pricing fee.

Q Sorry. Did not mean to cut you off.

A | was going to say that's an inportant
consi deration here. W' ve been tal king about everything
on a purely weather normalized basis.

Q That raises a fascinating question related to
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the fuel adjustment clause. And if you don't mind, |'m
not going to pose it to you unless you feel up to
di scussing the fuel adjustnment clause. | just don't

know if that's something that you were particularly
famliar wth.

A |'mfamliar with the fuel adjustnent clause
in the sense of howit's applied to the custoner's bill
when cal cul ating their subscription pricing offer. |
haven't gone deep into the regulatory aspects of the
fuel adjustment clause.

MR CLIZER: That's okay. | wll spare you
having to struggle over that and pose it to a different
wi tness. Thank you for pointing that out. | think
have no further questions. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And that wll take
us to redirect.

MR, FI SCHER: Thank you, Judge. Just briefly.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR FI SCHER:

Q M. Hedik, early in your conversation with
Judge Hatcher he was asking about protections for
ratepayers. |1'd like to ask you what protections are
there first for ratepayers that are not participating in
t he plan?

A So the protections that are built in for
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nonpart|C|pants or ratepayers who are not part|0|pat|ng

I n subscription pricing, there are a couple. The first
I's subscription pricing includes, as | nentioned
earlier, the program cost adder, which once the program
Is fully available at scale is designed to fully recover
the costs of adm nistering and inplenenting this program
fromthe participants themselves. So in that sense the
program cost adder woul d insulate nonparticipants from
having to pay for any of the costs of offering the
program

On a pilot basis, it's inpractical to set the
rate at that level, the program cost adder at that |evel
so a portion wll be socialized. That's what
protections that programcost adder. And then the other
Is this notion that if Evergy ends up undercollecting
revenues fromparticipants in subscription pricing
relative to the standard rate, because, you know, it
ended up being a hotter than average or col der -- sunmer
col der than average wi nter, Evergy's sharehol ders pay
for that underrecovered revenue. That is not sonething
that nonparticipants in the programwould pay. So with
the exception of a portion of the pilot program cost
that will be socialized across custoners,
nonparticipants are insulated fromthe financial inpacts

of the program
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Q During the conversation | think there was a

reference by soneone to $150 fee that would be placed on
nonparticipants. |s that your understanding?

A It is not. No, ny understanding is that that
program cost adder up to $2.50 per nonth woul d be used
to offset a portion of that $150.

Q VWhat protections are there for the ratepayer
for the 20,000 that mght opt into this pilot progranf

A VWell, I think the biggest protection is any
custonmer who's opting into this programknows with 100
percent certainty what they will be paying. The
subscription pricing offer that is presented to them up
front is a monthly anount and that custonmer knows that
for the next 12 nonths that is what their electricity
bill will be with the possibility of being paid some of
that back at the end. So in ny mnd the biggest
protection for custonmers is they know exactly what
they're paying. And if that price is worth it for them
to sign up for the next 12 nonths, then the custoner
gets to make that decision

The other | guess protection | would nention
Is this is being offered on a purely opt-in basis so no
customer woul d unknowi ngly be defaulted or forced on to
this rate option. It would be a proactive decision that

custoners woul d make with 100 percent certainty about
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what they woul d be payi ng.

Q So the plan wouldn't be for everybody; is that
what you're sayi ng?

A That's nmy belief is that there's a subset of
the customer population that this plan woul d be
attractive to.

Q Wul d the customer know that his usage woul d
be evaluated at the end of the year and redeterm ned on
a going forward basis?

A Yes. | believe custonmers would be aware of
that fact, yes.

Q Do you believe that woul d be an incentive for
a customer to conserve and be efficient?

A | do.

Q You were asked some questions about the other
jurisdictions that have adopted these types of plans.
Wul d you el aborate on the experience that those
conpani es have had and how custoners have reacted in
t hose areas?

A Real |y the data that | have to present there
are those enrol Il nent statistics that | nmentioned. So
again Georgia Power | think has reached 13 or 14 percent
enrol Il ment indicating pretty significant interest in
Ceorgia. | believe OGE, Cklahonma Gas and Electric has

maybe reached 9 percent participation anong their
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residential customers. And then that Xcel Energy

el ectric vehicle subscription pricing pilot that I had
mentioned earlier, | believe that that programreached
its pilot participation cap pretty quickly. So | think
the observation that | have fromthose other
jurisdictions is that again there's a neaningful subset
of the residential customer base that's pretty attracted
to this idea.

Q In all of those jurisdictions that have
adopted this type of plan, are they all adopted on an
opt-in optional not mandatory basis?

A Yes.

Q And do any of those conpanies al so have tine
of use rates or other rate structures?

A Yes, they do.

Q So they're not exclusively one or the other
Some custoners may choose to be on a subscription plan,
others mght want to be on a high differential time of
use plan to save noney, right?

A That's correct. And OCE is a good exanpl e of
that. They have a pretty well known variabl e peak
pricing rate option that is well subscribed in addition
to their subscription pricing offer.

MR FISCHER: | think that's all | have,
Judge. Thank you.
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JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. M. Hedik, you

are excused.

(Wtness excused.)

JUDGE HATCHER. All of our waiting w tnesses
can relax. W are going to break for lunch. As a
reward for everyone finding agreenment over the |ong
weekend, let's come back at 1:30. 1:30 is lunch. Of
the record.

(Thereupon, a lunch recess was taken from
12: 00 p.m wuntil 1:30 p.m, after which the follow ng
proceedi ngs were held:)

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's go on the record the
tinme of recess having expired. Again, this is Judge
Hatcher. W are returning to the general rate cases of
Evergy Metro and Evergy West. A couple quick
announcenents. First | would |ike to recognize that our
Chai rman, Ryan Silvey, has joined for the record naking
that another attendance of 100 percent by the
Comm ssioners for the hearing today.

Also on line currently we have Conm ssi oner
Col eman and | know we had Conmi ssioner Rupp and
Conmmi ssi oner Hol sman on earlier. | expect themto
rejoin as well as Conm ssioner Kol kneyer.

Let's go to second announcenent. The

Comm ssion would i ke an on-the-record presentation,

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

© o0 ~N oo o B~ W N B

N I R R S I - T N e e e e N e
ga A~ W N b O © 00 N oo 0o M W DD -+ o

o ) ) Page 525
pl ease. And as the presiding officer, | see inmmense

advantages in getting that done this week while to

what ever extent we have sone control over the

Commi ssioners' calendars. That would nake this a | ot
easier. | do understand that it is Tuesday and that
later on this week is very soon. So | would like to
give this over to the parties and I will anoint staff to
be responsible for communicating a reply as to hopefully
a jointly suggested time, et cetera, details for an on
the record.

MR CLIZER: For clarification, is it all --
both current stips and the third one that shoul d be
filed? That's what | thought.

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes. For the record, well,
three plus, fingers crossed if there are any nore that
come in. Yes, M. Mers.

M5. MERS. If | may hunbly request that if
there are any particular issues in those stipulations
that the Comm ssioners have particul ar questions about,
that would help the parties with availability of
W t nesses and hel p us narrow down a tinme that would be
best for everybody. So we would appreciate to the
extent that that is possible.

JUDGE HATCHER: | believe you have just put

the word out, and I will followup with themw th an
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emai |l .

MS. MERS. Thank you very nuch.

JUDGE HATCHER  (One final announcenent.
M. dizer.

MR CLIZER  Yes, just briefly. The
procedural conference for Case ER- 2023-0011, and |
apol ogi ze, | don't know the actual style of the case, is
currently scheduled for 3:00 p.m tonmorrow. | would
very nmuch like to be able to be on that procedural
conference. |'ve been assigned to the case. | would
ask tonmorrow if we have not reached the end of the
hearing day by 3:00 p.m for a brief adjournnent so that
| may attend that procedural conference.

JUDGE HATCHER  For the benefit of our
| i stening audi ence, the case nunber cited is for Evergy

MR CLIZER Correct.

JUDGE HATCHER: -- and it involves their FAC

MR CLIZER It is the request to increase the
FAC for Evergy West to be specific.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And that is it's
not only tine conflict but it's possible connection to
this case.

MR CLIZER | would probably say yes,

somewhat of a connecti on.
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JUDGE HATCHER. |I'msorry. | did not mean to

step on any hidden issues. So with that request nade, |
hesitate to ask so officially now But if anybody has a
t hought .

MR STEINER: | don't have an objection, Your
Honor, to allow OPC to attend.

JUDGE HATCHER | don't think that was his
exact request. So | wll take your request under
advisement. We'll see where we get to three o' clock and
then be prepared | will be asking the parties for a
recess or an adjournment for the day which shoul d not
throw ne off schedule, M. Public Counsel.

MR CLIZER | said adjournnent. |'d be okay
with a recess too.

JUDGE HATCHER: (Okay. Either. W'Il|l get
there when we get to that bridge. Excellent. Any other
announcenents? Thank you

Let's return to our witness list. By ny
schedule, it is Evergy's next witness.

MR, STEINER: Yes. Conpany calls Bradley
Lutz.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. As M. Lutz makes
his way to the stand, just to remnd himhe's already
been sworn in. That is still applicable. Go ahead and

take your seat. The witness is yours.
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BRADLEY LUTZ,

havi ng been previously duly sworn, was exam ned and
testified as foll ows:

MR STEINER:  Your Honor, this witness's
prefiled testinony has already been admtted. So |
woul d tender himfor cross-exam nation.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, sir. That wll
take us to cross-exam nation. On our shortened |ist,
and again let the record reflect Comm ssioner Kol kmeyer
has joined us in person, Renew M ssouri, any questions?

MS. GREENWALD: No questions, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you. Ms. Mers?

MS. MERS: No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER M. dizer?

MR CLIZER: No questions at this time. Thank
you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Ckay. M. Lutz, any
Comm ssi oner questions for M. Brad Lutz of Evergy?

CHAI RVAN SI LVEY: No questions, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Chairnman. The
bench does have a couple questions. I'msorry. That's
going to subject you to the whole rignmarole.

QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q M. Lutz, your testinmony details aspects of
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this programw th regard to how certain costs and

revenues woul d be accounted for either above or bel ow
the line. So ny first question, this is a two-part,
first is can you clarify what specific charges would be
above and which specific would be bel ow?

A Yes. Under the conpany proposal, all of the
charges related to the programwoul d be accounted for
below the line, or | guess | should rephrase that to say
the net effects of those. So the point is that our goal
Is to shield nonparticipants fromthis pilot to allow us
to |l earn and understand about the program w thout
exposi ng any nonparticipants to the effects of this
pilot.

Q And to foll ow that up, does the Conm ssion
under this proposal, would the Comm ssion naintain any
ability to review or adjust any of those revenues or
expenses?

A Certainly.

Q How do you see that happening?

A Well, in the next rate case those woul d be
offered up and again available to staff and ot her
parties to review all of the accounting treatnents of
those various costs and handled in that proceeding.

Q Wul d a paraphrase be a normal prudence

revi ew?
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A Yes. Yes, | would say that nothing we have

proposed steps outside of the normal Conm ssion review
JUDGE HATCHER. (Ckay. Thank you. That is al
the questions | have. Hold on just a mnute. As |
said, we've got to go through the current |ist again.
THE WTNESS: Certainly.
JUDGE HATCHER: Let's go to

recross-examnation and that will go back to Renew

M ssouri .
MS. GREENWALD: No questions. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: Ms. Mers?
M5. MERS: A few
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. MERS:

Q You said that nothing in your response to the
bench you believe is outside the normal regulatory
review process. Do you believe that the regul ators,
parties such as staff and OPC, would have the ability to
review what | believe was 20,000 proposed in testinony
but sounded |ike today is now 40,000 potenti al
participants and weather normalized their usage?

A Coul d you ask that nmaybe one nore tine just to
make sure | give you the answer that you're seeking.

Q Let me see if | can say it in a different way

i f you give ne a nonent.
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A Sure.

Q (kay. So for staff and other parties to
review, would it be necessary for parties to reviewthe

weat her normalization of each individualized custoner?

A | would think not. But ny -- it depends on
your approach. |If you follow -- In ny past experience
as an auditor, | think that you can use sanpling

t echni ques, risk based assessnments, and you can get
everything you need through that process to becone
confident with what's going on in the process. So to
answer your question, no, | don't believe that you need
to exam ne each custoner to understand that process.

Q s it your understanding in this current case
in your typical rate schedules that staff has expressed
concerns about being able to review and anal yze the data
that's provi ded?

A Certainly.

Q And when you said that this would be subject,
| believe in response to the bench question, to a
prudence review or sonething |ike a prudence review, not
to put words in your nouth, would you include the
revenues that are being booked below the line in that?

A Yes. The whole point is to nake sure that
that accounting is noving those dollars correctly,

certainly.
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Q So without any special accounting treatnent or

AAQ, you believe that that could be reviewed and noved
frombelowthe line if things were found to be -- if
there were discrepancies in accounting that the parties
or the Comm ssion could find?

A | mght have not to answer if | may, because
we're starting to nove into accounting treatments which
are not ny specialty. So | don't want to m sstate how
sonmething mght be treated there.

MS. MERS: (Gkay. Thank you nuch for your

tine.
JUDGE HATCHER: M. i zer.
MR CLIZER. CGood afternoon, M. Lutz.
THE WTNESS: Good afternoon
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR CLI ZER

Q Just for the sake of the record to nmake things
clear for briefing, belowthe line treated as a term of
art, | want to nake sure that that's clear, a cost that
I s booked below the line is a cost that is not included
I n the conpany's cost of service?

A Correct.

Q Right. So your understandi ng based on your
response fromthe bench is that both costs and revenues

generated fromthese -- I'"'mgoing to screwthis up. Let
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me start that questlon over.

Your understanding is that the costs and
revenues in excess of the nornalized weather anmounts
woul d be not included in the conpany's cost of service?
Did | get that partially correct at |east?

A | believe so. Wat ny answer was saying is
that just below they're below the line in that treatnent
doesn't mean they're precluded fromany kind of review
inthe rate case. | mean | still think there needs to
be a determnation that the proper treatnent occurred.
It's just a matter of what's included ultimately in the
revenue requirement requested by the conpany.

Q But any excess revenue or excess costs beyond
what the conmpany originally intended to collect through
the rate would be retained by the conpany in either
direction?

A Correct. We've requested a symetric
treatment, yes.

Q They woul d be both borne by or received by
sharehol ders and not borne by or received by ratepayers?

MR CLIZER. Correct. Thank you. | wanted to
get that clarified. | have no further questions.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. That will take us
to redirect.

MR, STEINER: Thank you.
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR STEI NER

Q M. Lutz, you were asked sone questions about
how staff would audit accounts. Do you recall that?

A | do.

Q Can you describe how you think an audit woul d
t ake pl ace?

A Vel |, starting fromthe account perspective,
what | woul d probably do would be to review the overal
popul ation and identify sonme kind of approach sanpling
technique to review and extract a statistically
significant sanple fromthat population. | would review
that, do my discovery, and then determne, you know, if
|'"mconfortable with the results or if any kind of
further anal ysis was needed. M hope is that the
process would avail itself and you would be able to
under stand what was occurring in the execution of that
process and can make an assessment of it.

Q Do you recall staff asking you if it was true
that they expressed a concern on the ability to review
data in this case?

A | do.

Q And | believe you said yes, staff did express
a concern?

A No, that | was aware of their concerns in the
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1 case.
2 Q Do you believe they did have a legitimte
3 concern on review ng data?
4 A Can you rephrase that?
5 Q "1l just drop it.
6 A Ckay. Sorry.
7 MR STEINER: That's all | have, Judge.
8 JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, sir. You are
9 excused.
10 (Wtness excused.)
11 JUDGE HATCHER: Evergy, your next witness.
12 MR. STEINER: Conpany calls Ki m W nsl ow.
13 JUDGE HATCHER  You' ve al ready been sworn in?
14 THE WTNESS: No, | have not.
15 JUDGE HATCHER: Go ahead and rai se your right

16  hand, please.

17 Do you solemly swear or affirmthat the

18 testinony you're about to give is the truth, the whole
19 truth, and nothing but the truth?

20 THE WTNESS: | do.

21 JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Please have a

22 seat. Your W tness.

23 KI MBERLY W NSLOW

24 having been first duly sworn, was exam ned and testified

25 as foll ows:
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR STEI NER

Q Wuld you state your nane for the record,
pl ease?

A Ki mberly W nsl ow.

Q VWhere do you work and what is your position
t here?

A | work at Evergy, and ny position is Senior
Director of Energy Sol utions.

Q Thank you. M. Wnslow, did you cause to be
filed in the Evergy Metro case direct testinmony which
has been premarked as Exhibit 82, rebuttal testinony
whi ch has been premarked as Exhibit 83, and surrebuttal
testinony that's been premarked as Exhibit 847

A Yes, | did.

Q Did you also file in the Evergy Mssouri West
case direct testinony which has been premarked as
Exhi bit 1287

A Yes, | did.

Q Those testinmonies | nentioned, do you have any
corrections to any of those?

A No, | do not.

Q Wul d the answers to those testinonies be the
sane as they appear -- would be the same today as they

appear in the witten formin your testinony?
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A Yes, they woul d.

Q Are the answers contained in the testinony
true and accurate to the best of your know edge and
bel i ef?

A Yes.

MR, STEINER: Judge, | would nove for the
adm ssion of Wnslow direct, rebuttal, and surrebuttal
testinony using the previous marked nunbers and then
woul d tender this witness for cross-exam nation.

JUDGE HATCHER  You've heard the notion. |
wi |l conbine all of the questions and repeat the exhibit
nunmbers. Are there any objections to the adm ssion of
Exhibit 82, 83, or 84 to the file number ending in 0129
or the adm ssion of Exhibit 128 to the file nunber
ending in 0130? Any objections? Hearing none, it is so
adm tted.

(COVPANY EXHI BI TS 82, 83, 84, AND 128 WERE
RECEI VED | NTO EVI DENCE AND MADE A PART OF THI S RECORD.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's go to cross-exam nation.
Renew M ssouri .

MS. GREENWALD: No questions, Your Honor.
Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And Staff.

MS. MERS. No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: And Public Counsel .
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MR CLIZER No questions at this tine. Thank

you.
JUDGE HATCHER. Thank you. Ms. Wnslow, I'm
sorry, | do have a question. Let's ask the
Conm ssioners first. Any Conm ssioner questions for M.
W nsl ow?
COMM SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  No questi ons, Judge.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Conmi ssioner. And
as | said, the bench does have just a couple questions.
QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q Your testinmony nentions a nunber of ruled
variances that Evergy is seeking in conjunction with
this pilot program Do you have a sense if the program
woul d still be offered if those variances are not
grant ed?

A Yes. So in review of those variances, |
believe that there was about four variances. Wen |
submtted ny testinmony, there was a conbination of
variances that were provided for both advanced easy pay
and for subscription pricing. Now that advanced easy
pay has been agreed to be withdrawn by parties and the
conpany, there still exists about four different
variances. | believe that a couple of them are based

around whet her or not the conpany is able to show actual
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energy usage to the custoner and show a begi nning and

ending nmeter reading and then | think the third one was
just around being able to, you know, notify the custoner
that there would be sone seasonal rate changes as well.
In review of those variances, | think that as we think
about the bill that we want to present to a subscription
pricing participant, | think it is inportant that we
show them what their historical usage is and what their
actual usage is. So nmy review of Georgia Power, you
know, M. Hedik had tal ked about that their program had
been in place for about 20 years, and | think of them as
being a very good benchmark to think about how we woul d
offer this program They do offer within their bil

that actual usage and historical usage and, you know,
the conpany would want to seek to be able to offer that
so that we can continue to again take advantage of our
Cl'S system and present that to the custoner. So | think
there nay be the one variance around seasonality. |'m
not so sure that that may be one variance that we would
continue to seek sinply because the custonmer will have a
fixed bill. And so they don't necessarily need to
understand that their bill may be changi ng because of
rates. It will be a fixed bill. | think on those other
ones, you know, we would have to continue to think about

whet her or not we can present that historical energy
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usage as well as the current energy usage. Does that

make sense?

Q Am | to take your answer as --

A | think that we would -- you're saying woul d
-- Repeat your question again.

Q Wuld you still do the programif the
Comm ssion said no to your waivers?

A | ' mnot sure that we could do the program
yeah.

Q Al'l right. This one was a punted question

A Ckay.

Q How wi | | custoners be nmade aware of their
usage and how it tracks with their anticipated or
cal cul ated usage? So kind of like the exanple you're
pointing out with Georgia, | think.

A Right. So again, | think we want to be able
to show the custoner what their actual usage is conpared
to historical usage so that they can understand how they
are performng against that subscription bill. And I
guess | would also add too we're tal king about that's
the physical bill. W do have the My Account portal,
which is the digital tool that many of our custoners --
all custonmers have access to that, but they have to set
up that account portal. There is information within

that account portal where they can go to and | ook to see
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what their usage has been for the day, for the week, for

the nonth, for the year.

Q Drawi ng on what | heard earlier, is the
current proposal then an annual summary of the
custoner's usage for that annual period and then
conpared to historical or is that in every nonthly bill?

A Qur initial offer would show what their
previ ous weat her normalized usage was and t hen what
their offer woul d be under subscription pricing. So

that would be their initial offer and then they would

still receive a nonthly bill showi ng what that nonthly
amount is.

Q | did not hear an answer to ny question.

A Ckay.

Q I's their monthly bill going to show any usage

for that nonth?

A Yes, yes. Their nonthly bill, again, we want
to strive to be able to show what their nmonthly bill is
and then conpared to what their historical nonthly usage
I'S.

Q Ckay. So | sign up for the program and
heard you qualify at the initial, and | want to get past
that. So I'msix nonths into the program

A Sure.

Q The bill that | get, is that one nmonthly bill

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

] o Page 542
going to show ne how nmuch electricity | consuned over

the |ast nonth?

A Yes.

Q |'s that nonthly bill going to show ne that
anmount so it's going to say Dear Charles, you spent $100
this nonth. Last year at this tine before you were on
this programyou spent $110 a nont h?

A Yeah. It will likely just show -- W won't
show the dollar anount. We'Ill show the usage anount.

Q But there will be some?

A Ri ght, vyes.

Q Any alerts for high usage, and at this point |
want to differentiate between you said My Custoner
portal ?

A. My Account .

Q My Account portal ?

A Yeah.

Q Because it sounds |ike that woul d be avail able
to these custoners. At the end of the day they could
certainly signin for a subscribed price and sign in
through that portal to get all of the nore detailed
granul ar data for their account?

A Correct.

Q Wthin the subscription program is there any

alert for high usage?
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A So within the actual subscription pricing
tariff, we did not set up any guardrails if a custoner
Is using nore than an extrene amount of usage than maybe
what they were in the previous nonth or the previous
year. So not within the subscription pricing tariff.
However, Evergy does have high bill alerts that a
custonmer can sign up for that also lets them know
whet her or not their usage is going out of bounds. |
bel i eve the customer can set guardrails around their
usage anount.

Q So | want to key in on that's not in program

A Uh- huh.

Q And referring to the guardrails. So there's
no automatic guardrails. So a hypothetical question.
As a parent whose children have bought one or two apps
Wi thout their parents' permssion -- man, | w sh they
don't ever read this -- | can inagine a scenario where
parents | eave for a nonth's vacation and cone home to
find out that they are now home to a crypto mning
operation. | have read news articles that these can
apparently be |loaded into sem truck trailers and noved
to plug into energy sources. So not humorous but
probably not outside the realmof possibility, at what
poi nt does the conpany have a responsibility to sonebody

to say holy cow, we have gone froma standard, and |I'm
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sorry for the dollar amounts, the hundred kWh a nonth to

50,000 gigawatts or whatever crypto mning is. Can you
help me with this hypothesis? Just talk it through a
little.

A Yeah, sure. In that case when | think about
how t he subscription pricing plan is devel oped and we' ve
tal ked, M. Hedik talked about the risk premumthat is
applied up to 10 percent. So when we think about that
I ncreased cost that could occur, that would be borne,
that increased cost we have that 10 percent prem um
there's a behavioral risk conponent up to 5 percent,
right, and then there's the other piece around the risk
premumthat that could be based on weather, it could be
based on nodeling, any nodeling risks that we may have,
different just risk elements that we're thinking, any
riders that may increase or decrease. So the conpany
has devel oped those both at behavior risk and the risk
premumthat it has applied. So the conpany then or the
sharehol ders if the custonmer ends up goi ng outside of
their nonthly amount, bill amunt, that cost will be
borne by the sharehol ders, not by the conpany or not by
nonparticipants, right, so | think we have to renenber
that fromthat perspective the shareholders wll bear
that cost of any increased usage that is going to

happen. And then when it cones to the next year then,
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the customer will then -- they will pay an increased or

an average anount based on the previous 12 nonths. So
then they get reset their next year. Their next 12
months will get reset. But then they will receive their
monthly bill as well that will show what the usage was
for that nonth.

Q We've talked a little bit about the customner
portal which sounds very conducive to custoners with a
smart phone or a tablet or internet access.

A. Uh- huh.

Q Wul d customers without that access still be
able to participate in a subscription pricing of the
progr anf

A Yes. Any custoner could participate. | nean,
there's some restrictions that we have within the
tariff, net metering, single metered nulti famly,
apartnment conplex, but someone that -- | mean, with al
of our prograns a customer can still participate w thout
access to the portal.

Q But now we have a custonmer who is nore engaged
and wants to set up some guardrails but no smart phone.
Are they going to be able to participate in your
subscription program set up the guardrails and not have
a smart phone or access to the internet?

A | mean, it's possible. | mean, | feel |ike,
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you know, this is a programthat perhaps that person,

they nmay see that that's not something that they want to
choose to participate or not and there may be anot her
program where they do want nore of that real tinme
information. Time of use, for exanple, they wouldn't be
able -- | nmean, would that preclude themfrom
participating in time of use as well. | don't want to

draw too much attention if they don't have access to a

conputer or a smart phone but they can still participate
in the program They would still be able to have that
information and still receive that monthly bill just as

all the other custoners.

Q Have you | ooked at any data or surveys to
I ndicate that customers on the budget billing option
woul d transition to the subscription pricing option
mai nly because of the lack of a true-up?

A We have done multiple surveys. That
particular question, |'mnot sure. | do know that again
as we presented the different options or did some of our
surveys, custonmers were interested in that flat bill
one that did not have the true-up at the end of the 12
months or even now are average paynent plan. It gets
trued up within plus or mnus 10 percent even on a
monthly basis. So that was an attribute when we did our

custoner research custonmers did |like the fact that there
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was a flat bill that they could sinply budget for and

not have to worry about it.

JUDGE HATCHER: That takes care of all the
questions | have. M. Wnslow, I'mgoing to have to ask
you to wait on our witness stand for just a few nonents.
We're going to go through recross. First | have Renew
M ssouri. Any questions on recross.

MS. GREENWALD: No, thank you

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you. And for staff.

M5. MERS. (Good afternoon, Ms. Wnslow

THE WTNESS: Hi .

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY Ms. MERS:

Q Do you have a copy of your direct with you?

A | do, yes.

Q Coul d you turn to your first schedul e,
Schedul e KHW page 1?2

A Yes, uh-huh.

Q Is it correct that this is a chart that you've
laid out for the requested variances for both the
advanced easy pay and the subscription pricing pilot?

A Yes, | nmentioned that, yes.

Q |'massumng for all who maybe don't have a
copy but the AEP is advanced pilot and the SPE is
t hi ngs?
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1 A Subscription pricing.

2 Q For the variance for 20 CSR 4240-13.020(2),

3 which is the each billing statement rendered by a

4 utility shall be conputed on actual usage, is it correct
5 that the justification you've listed is for the

6 subscription pilot as the programw || be set up with an
7 agreed upon monthly charge at the start, there's not a

8 need to bill based on actual usage?

9 A Ri ght.

10 Q Custoners will still have options available to
11 find out their actual usage other than the actual

12 is that a correct reading?

13 A Yes, that's correct.

14 MS. MERS. Thank you. That was all | had.

15 JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. M. dizer.

16 MR CLIZER: (Good afternoon, Ms. Wnslow.

17 THE WTNESS: Good afternoon

18 RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

19 BY MR CLIZER
20 Q All right. If I'ma savvy Evergy custonmer and
21 | sign up for subscription billing, | know that in order
22 to receive the behavioral usage, |I'musing the term
23 rebate, the behavioral usage anount that conmes back to
24  custoners at the end of the year. |'mgoing to cal
25 -- keep calling it rebate. |'mapologizing if you
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disagree with that term

MR STEINER: I'mgoing to object that the

Judge didn't ask about the behavioral usage adder. |It's

beyond the scope of the Judge's questions.

MR CLIZER If you wll allowme, I'mtrying

to get tomy point. | wll get there relatively

qui ckl y.

MR, STEINER  You're supposed to ask questions

about what the Judge asked, not your point.

MR CLIZER: Al right. Let nme rephrase ny

questi on.
JUDGE HATCHER  Yes, that | will agree wth.
Thank you.
BY MR CLIZER
Q Ms. Wnslow, you were having a discussion with

the Judge about the ability to include the actual usage

on custoner hills?

A
Q
A
Q

Uh- huh.
R ght ?
Yes.

That is an actual usage and not the weat her

nornal i zed usage, right?

A
Q

That's correct, yes.

(kay. A custoner trying to determne if they

are going to be eligible for returning the anount under
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t he behavi oral usage needs to know whether or not their

weat her normal i zed usage has increased or decreased,
right?

A Ri ght, yes.

Q There's not going to be any way for a custoner
to determ ne whether or not their weather nornalized
usage increases or decreases fromthe bill?

A Right. We will be presenting their actual

usage, Yyes.
MR CLIZER | apologize. That was the point
| wanted to make. Thank you. | have no further
questi ons.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. That takes us to
redirect.

MR, STEINER:  Thanks.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR STEI NER:

Q Staff asked you a question about your Schedul e
1 where you listed the variances you requested. Do you
see that?

A Yes, uh- huh.

Q And | think you mentioned it earlier regarding
how the bill would show actual usage based on your
review of CGeorgia Power bills?

A. Uh- huh
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Q So is that sonething in addition to what you

requested in the variance or said that there's no need

to bill based on actual usage nonthly?
A Yeah. | nean, in this variance we're not
billing based on actual usage, on actual nonthly usage.

We're not billing on that basis. W're billing an
average anount cal culated fromthe subscription pricing
of fer.

Q Right. But you're still proposing to show
actual usage as you discussed earlier?

A Yes.

Q You were speaking to M. Cizer about weather

normal i zed usage information; is that correct?

A Yes.
Q Do you recall that?
A Un- huh

Q Wul d the conpany be willing to work with the
custoner to provide weather nornalized billing
i nformation should they require it, should they ask for
it?

A Yeah, | think the conpany definitely would
want to, you know, present that or not present it but
hel p the customer understand how their actual usage is
varied based on how weather is inpacting their usage.

And for exanple, | nean, | would say even within our My
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Account portal we have tenperature data that we al so

share along with the custoner.

Q You al so tal ked about with the Judge high bil
alerts. Wuld you also be willing to work with the
custoners to provide high bill alerts should they
require those?

A Yes.

MR, STEINER: Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Ms. W nsl ow.

You' re excused.

(Wtness excused.)

JUDGE HATCHER  Evergy, go ahead and cal |l your
next W tness.

MR STEINER: That is it, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: No M. File?

MR STEINER M. File is testifying on
advanced easy pay, and we've agreed to renove that if we
get the stipulation filed, which we anticipate doing
t oday.

JUDGE HATCHER  Understood. And that will |
believe take us to staff and | understand there are two
staff wtnesses. So staff's witness. Go ahead.

MS. MERS: Staff would call Contessa King to
t he stand.

JUDGE HATCHER. Good afternoon, M. King.
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Pl ease raise your right hand.

Do you solemly swear or affirmto tell the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth in
your testinony?

THE WTNESS: | do.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Please be seated.
Ms. Mers.

CONTESSA KI NG

having been first duly sworn, was examned and testified
as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY Ms. MERS:

Q Coul d you pl ease state and spell your nane for
the record?

A First nane Contessa, C-o0-n-t-e-s-s-a. Last
nanme King, K-i-n-g.

Q And who are you enployed by and i n what

capacity?

A | am enpl oyed by the M ssouri Public Service
Comm ssion. | amthe manager of the custoner experience
depart nent.

Q Did you file or cause to be prepared testinony
in this case that has been listed as the rebuttal
testinmony of Contessa King, Exhibit 242, in both public
and confidential versions?

A. Yes.

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

© o0 ~N oo o B~ W N B

N I R R S I - T N e e e e N e
ga A~ W N b O © 00 N oo 0o M W DD -+ o

Q Do you have any corrections to that test iP?lr%enig4
A. No.
Q If | asked you those sane questions today,
woul d your answers be the sanme?
A Yes.
Q Is that information true and correct to the

best of your know edge and belief?
A Yes.
MS. MERS: | would go ahead and ask that that
exhibit be entered and then tender Ms. King for cross.
JUDGE HATCHER  You've heard the notion. Are
there any objections to the adm ssion of Exhibit 242 to
the hearing record? Hearing none, the exhibit is so
adm tted.
(STAFF'S EXHI BI T 242 WAS RECEI VED I NTO
EVI DENCE AND MADE A PART OF TH S RECCORD.)
JUDGE HATCHER: The wi tness has been tendered
and that will take us to Public Counsel.
MR CLIZER: CGood afternoon, Ms. King.
THE W TNESS: Afternoon.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR CLI ZER:
Q You are fairly famliar with Evergy's existing
billing systemor bill options, correct?

A Fairly famliar, yes.
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Q Evergy currently offers a billing option

referred to as |evel pay, correct?

A Yes, their average |evel paynent plan.

Q You woul d agree with me that the current
average | evel paynent plan is substantially simlar --

l et me wal k that back. Were you here this norning when
M. Hedik was testifying?

A Yes.

Q When he was asked a question fromthe Judge he
was tal ki ng about broader perspectives, and one of the
things he mentioned was the idea that customers m ght
want a |evel or consistent amount of billing. You would
agree with me that Evergy's current average |evel pay
systemal |l ows custonmers to be billed a regular average
amount every nonth, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Do you believe it would be possible to make
changes to the existing average | evel pay systemthat
coul d solve or bring that paynent programcloser or nore
simlar to what Evergy is proposing here?

A Yes. | mean, the conpany is stating that one
of the reasons they want to offer this programto their
custoners is because custoners want predictability and
they want choice. So they could |ook at their existing

average paynment plan and redesign it in a way in which
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customers would get that predictability and they can

also design it in a way where there's choices that
custonmers can nake along the way within that 12-nonth
period. For exanple, giving themthe choice to true up
maybe at six nonths or at the end of the 12-nonth period
allowng themto roll over any remaining balance into
the next 12 nmonths. So they can achieve the
predictability that they're touting as well as custoner
choice by sinply redesigning an existing program and
OPC wi tness Ms. Lisa Krener, she nmentions that in her
testinmony as well.

Q | know there's been sone di scussion especially
during the opening that kind of conpared the
subscription pay programto sonething like a
subscription streamng service. | think Netflix is the
trademark name that's gotten thrown around. You would
agree wth me that electricity service or the services
being offered by Evergy are not truly simlar to a
subscription stream ng service like Netflix, right?

A In terms of being essential, no, they're not
simlar. | don't find Netflix or Gold' s menbership or
any type of stream ng service a necessity whereas
electricity is a necessity.

Q You woul d agree with me that Evergy unlike

stream ng services are not conpeting for their custoners
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-- are not conpeting for their custoners?

A Evergy is a nonopoly. So no, they are not
conpeti ng.
MR CLIZER | have no further questions at
this tine. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, M. Cizer. Next
we have Renew M ssouri
MS. GREENWALD: No questions. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER:  And the conpany.
MR. FI SCHER: Yeah, just a couple, Judge.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR FI SCHER
Q Ms. King, you were visiting with public
counsel about ways to inprove the current average |evel
pay programthat Evergy has. Do you recall that?
A | wouldn't call it visiting, but yes, | do
recal | the discussion.
Q Under cross-exam nation. |'msorry.
A Yes.
Q Wul d you recommend the elimnation of the
true-up aspect of that plan?
A No. Wat |'m suggesting is that you coul d
potentially roll that into the next 12 nonths.
Q Isn't that the major difference between the

current budget billing plan as | call it and what the
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conpany i s proposing with the subscription pricing pilot

progr anf

A That is a difference, correct.

Q It's probably the major one, isn't it?

A Yes, | would say it's najor.

Q You' ve been around the Commi ssion a long tineg;
Is that right?

A 20 years.

Q s it your understanding that the Comm ssion,
one of the primary tasks of the Conm ssion is to serve
as a surrogate to act -- to encourage the conpanies to
act nore |ike a conpetitive nmarket woul d?

A To act as a surrogate?

Q Surrogate for conpetition when there is none.

A | do believe that that has been and is
encouraged. | think we have to be careful in nmaking
sure that prograns are designed in a way that is
beneficial to customers in doing that, but | don't
di sagree that yeah, they would |ike to see choice where
choi ce can be of fered.

Q Do you believe that choice is a beneficial

thing for custoners?

A | believe informed choice is beneficial to
cust oners.
Q | nf ormed choi ce?
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A Yes.

Q So choice if they're inforned about the
programs would be a benefit to customers. They can opt
in or they can opt out; they don't need to be a part of
the pilot, right?

A Correct.

Q That is a choice that they have in this
setting, right?

A Yes. This programis designed as voluntary
only and opt in, that is correct.

Q But staff is opposing that choice for
consuners, right?

A Staff is opposing that choice for consunmers
because by the conpany's own adm ssion the custoner that
I's participating in subscription pricing on average
woul d pay nore under subscription pricing than they
woul d under the standard rate.

Q And certain custoners would find the fixed
bill aspect of that programto be attractive and woul d
perhaps nore than offset any concern they have about a
little bit nore noney?

A | believe that's where we're facing some
phi | osophi cal differences whereas staff is not
supporting a program where on average a custoner coul d

pay nore sinply for the opportunity to have choice.
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Q Staff knows better than the custoner about

what kind of paynent plan they prefer?

A No. Staff does not know better.

MR, FI SCHER: Thank you. That's all | have,
Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. Fischer. That
w || take us to Conm ssioner questions. Are there any
Commi ssioner questions for Ms. King? Hearing none, the
bench does have a couple questions, M. King.

QUESTI ONS

BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q These are again sonme reboot questions |'ve
asked other witnesses. | want to make sure staff had an
opportunity to also answer. Do you believe that Evergy
coul d proceed with this pilot programif the Conm ssion
deni ed the variances?

A Wll, let me say first that, of course, we are
not supporting that the Conm ssion approve this program
But if the Comm ssion were to, then | believe the
information that they' re wanting to renove fromthe
physical bill that they could include that information
on the bill based on nmy understanding of how their
systemworks. So yes, | think they could nove forward
with the programw thout the variances.

Q | want to nmake sure I'mfollowng the train of
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t hought and make sure that it's in the record. You're

saying that wthout the variances Evergy could still do
t he program because they woul d be producing a bill which
could include all of the required information under
Chapter 13 or other regul ations?

A Based on ny understandi ng of which variances
they're seeking that were included in their direct
testinony, it seens to me that a nunber of these
variances aren't -- that they could continue to go ahead
and nove on with the programbut still include some of
the information. Like they're wanting to renmove |ike
the seasonal change. | nean, that's just they can put a
blurb on the bill that that actually explains that that
occurs. It may not be occurring for that particular
cust oner because they're on subscription pricing, but
they could still put it on the bill that that occurs.

In terns of consunption, | have to be honest
|'ma little confused on what they're saying they're
going to continue to put on the physical bill. It seens
to me that consunption could still be on the bill. It's
my opinion that a billing period could still be on the
bill. So you know, potentially they could nove forward
Wi t hout .

Q Ckay. Thank you. One nore. This was posed
to M. Lutz. Wuld the Conm ssion still have the
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ability to review and/or adjust any revenue or expense

posted bel ow the |line associated with this progranf

A Staff witness Sarah Lange, she can testify and

answer any questions regarding revenue treatnents or
rate design.

JUDGE HATCHER  Excel lent. Thank you, M.
King. That's all the questions the bench has. | do
apol ogi ze. We're going to go through the rignmarole
again.

THE WTNESS: That's okay.

JUDGE HATCHER We'|| go back to

recross-examnation. M. dizer

MR CLIZER: | have no questions. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Renew M ssouri .
MS. GREENWALD: No questions. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER:  Evergy.

MR, FISCHER: No questions. Thank you, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: And redirect.
MS. MERS. (Good afternoon, M. King.
THE WTNESS: Afternoon. Thank you
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY Ms. MERS:
Q You were asked by counsel for OPC about what

changes could be nade to the | evel paynment plan to get

more predictability. D d you have any others than the
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ones you went over?
A In terns of recomendations?
Q Yes.

A Not really.

Q And Evergy could still bundle, we've heard
that termoften, the level paynment plan with offers such
as a smart thernostat, correct?

A To ny know edge, there's nothing preventing
them from doi ng that.

Q You al so received some questions from counse
for Evergy about one of staff's duties and you stated
that is to act or encourage conpetitive environnent or
act as a surrogate for conpetition. Do you recall that?

A | believe he said Conm ssion.

Q Commi ssion. |s part of the Comm ssion's
guess sl ogan or notto, would you think that that portion
he's tal king about is the quality utility service
portion?

A Yes.

Q And is there another part of that Conm ssion
motto?

A | nfornmed consuners, quality utility services.

Q And what concerns does staff have with the
I nformed consunmer portion of that in making sure that

the Conmi ssion is hel ping custoners be as informed as
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t hey can?

A As stated in ny testinony, | do think it's
going to take -- it may take, that's what | say in ny
testinony, it may take a sophisticated customer to
understand the intricacies of this program And so --
and then the conpany has stated there's no need to go
into great detail wth custonmers how all of the adders
and all the various things that are associated with the
calculation of the bill. | believe that's just where we
disagree. W do believe that custoners need to be well
inforned on what they're getting into even though this
Is a voluntary program

Q And you' re asked about, or nmaybe accused woul d
be a better termof staff assum ng they know better than
cust oners.

MR FISCHER: I'Il object to the
characterization of that.

MS. MERS. | apologize. |'Il wthdraw
BY Ms. MERS:

Q But do you recall that statenent being nade?

A Yes.

Q Do you think staff with its training and
expertise understands proposals better than the typical
consuner ?

A Yes, we do, and we're struggling with this
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one.

Q And do you think without education that
consunmers can nmake a truly inforned voluntary choice?

A No.

Q And does elimnating this programelimnate
choice fromthe consumer or other options for themto
get predictability or an average known nonthly plan or
payment ?

A To answer the beginning of your question, no,
and yes, there's other options.

Q You were asked by the bench about the
variances in this case if Evergy could still go forward.
What is your understanding of the variances requested?

A My understanding is that the conpany will no
| onger because of the nature of the program howit's
designed, there won't be a billing period on there.
There won't be the actual usage on the bill because even
in Ms. Wnslow s schedule in her direct testinony she
states that there's other ways in which custoners can
find out about their actual usage. So in reading that,
that's telling nme that perhaps consunption woul dn't be
on there. So you know, those are just some issues that
come to mnd. Also, they' re requesting a variance from
13.020(2) which is the estimated billing procedures

whi ch, of course, again the way this programis designed
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we' re not | ooking to have things estinated, but one of

the provisions is that the conpany puts on the bil

whet her or not the reading is estimated or actual. And
since they're asking for a variance fromthat, that
means if there were sonething that happened to the
meter, you know, sonetinmes that's how custoners find out
that a nmeter has nmal functioned is because they'|ll see
that E or that A on there. Custoners would no |onger
receive that information either

Q So you nentioned the notification on the bill
that usage was actual or estimated m ght be a way of
alerting consuners or Evergy --

A Ri ght.

Q -- that there's a potential issue. Wuld
havi ng that usage on there provide difficulties, or not
havi ng that usage, excuse nme, woul d not having that
usage on there provide difficulties for consuners in
filing a conplaint if they believe they were charged
incorrectly or if they -- would they be able to tell if
there was any diversion on their account w thout that
i nformation?

A It's possible they could, you know, maybe m ss
sonet hi ng because that information isn't included on the
bill.

MS. MERS. (Ckay. That's all | had. Thank you
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very nuch.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Ms. King. You are
excused.

THE W TNESS: Thank you

(Wtness excused.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Staff's next w tness?

MS. MERS: Staff calls Sarah Lange to the
st and.

JUDGE HATCHER: Ms. Lange, please raise your
ri ght hand.

Do you solemly swear or affirmthat the
testinony you' re about to give is truth, the whole
truth, and nothing but the truth?

THE WTNESS: | do.

JUDGE HATCHER: Pl ease have a seat. M. Mers.

SARAH LANGE,
having been first duly sworn, was exam ned and testified
as follows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. MERS:

Q Coul d you pl ease state and spell your nane for
the record?

A Sarah, S-a-r-a-h, L.K Lange, L-a-n-g-e.

Q And who are you enployed by and in what

capacity?
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A ' m enpl oyed by the M ssouri Public Service

Comm ssion as a regul atory econom st on staff.

Q Do you have any other training or degrees that
hel p you in your job?

A Yes, | also have a Mssouri Bar license. |'m
an attorney in the state of Mssouri.

Q And did you prepare or cause to be prepared
direct testinony that has been marked as Exhi bit 229,
rebuttal testinony that has been marked as Exhibit 243,
and surrebuttal testinony that has been marked as
Exhibit 265?

A. | did.

Q Do you have any corrections to that testinony?

A | do. Several corrections were noted within
subsequent rounds of testinony, but to address here
today in the CCOS direct page 59, the sentence begi nning
on line 16 should read failure to ensure that customers
seeking additional distribution and nmetering equi pment
to facilitate an overall bill reduction are
appropriately charged for the costs of such upgrades
consistent with the applicable facility's extension
tariff provisions would be inprudent on the part of EMM
and EMW

JUDGE HATCHER. If | could interrupt just to

clarify. Wre all of the words that you spoke the
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correction?

THE WTNESS: Yes. | left -- a sentence got
wor ded very awkwardly when it was noved. So | was
reading the correct sentence. | can read what the
I ncorrect sentence said if that would be hel pful.

JUDGE HATCHER: No, but could you read the
conpl ete sentence one nore tine.

THE WTNESS: Yes, that was the conplete
sentence. Failure to ensure that customers seeking
additional distribution and nmetering equipnent to
facilitate an overall bill reduction are appropriately
charged for the costs of such upgrades consistent with
the applicable facility's extension tariff provisions
woul d be inprudent on the part of EMM and EMN So the
woul d be inmprudent is relating back to failure to follow
the tariff effectively.

JUDGE HATCHER  Ckay. Thank you. |'msorry.
Go ahead.

BY Ms. MERS:

Q Was that your only correction?

A That was not al ready addressed, yes.

Q And with that correction, is that testinony
true and accurate to the best of your know edge and
bel i ef ?

A It is.
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Q And if | asked you those sanme questions today,

woul d your answers be the sanme?
A They woul d.

MS. MERS. At this tinme | would go ahead and
of fer Exhibits 229, 243, and 265 into the record and
tender Ms. Lange for cross.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Ms. Mers. You've
heard the notion. Are there any objections to the
adm ssion of Exhibit 229, 243, or 265 on to the hearing
record? Seeing no objections, they are so admtted.

(STAFF' S EXHI BI TS 229, 243, AND 265 VERE
RECEI VED | NTO EVI DENCE AND MADE A PART OF THI S RECORD.)

JUDGE HATCHER: The wi tness has been tendered.
M. dizer, for Public Counsel.

MR, CLIZER: Good afternoon, Ms. Lange.

THE WTNESS: CGood afternoon

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR CLIZER

Q | believe that your counsel during opening
statements, and | apologize if | msparaphrase this,
suggested that staff had serious concerns regarding the
ability to audit these proposed progranms. | know that
that's been brought up by several other wtnesses. So
to hel p ne understand, am| correct in understanding

that staff's position is that it would be exceedingly
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difficult to audit the subscription pricing program for
rates?
A It would be, correct.

Q Am | correct in assumng that that difficulty
stens froma lack of information available to staff |
will add?

A It goes far beyond that. This tariff as it's
proposed has significant discretion available to conpany
and what we've learned here today is that there's even
more discretion than we're aware of. W've |earned
today that, let ne get the right name here, the risk
adder, is that what we're calling it, the 10 percent
gross-up or the up to 10 percent gross-up that that can
vary presumably at the conpany's conplete discretion,
whet her that's over tine, whether that's by custoner,
whet her that is both. That gives us an inability to go
back and check things. Wat we would need not only to
review the appropriateness of bills charged but also to
eval uate the effectiveness of the programand any i npact
It has on increasing usage, particularly usage at tines
of high energy costs and capacity demand is we woul d
need hourly usage. In this case we've been unable to
obtain hourly usage of, for exanple, the individual
customers who are on the TOU study and that was due to

the way the conpany naintains the data and the way they
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were able to make that available to the staff was going

to involve a trenmendous amount of storage and conputer
processing that far exceeds staff's ability to use. And
probably the nost significant issue is this weather
normal i zati on process.

Weat her normalization is commonly done on a
class or subclass level. It functions as well as it can
on that. The issue is applying those class average
responses to individual customers is just not reasonable
and so we woul d have to take the conpany's word for how
t hey weat her normalize both the historic usage and the
present period usage to cone up Wwth these anounts. And
even if we could access, you know, the 4,000, |I'msorry,
40,000 custoners' individual usage as woul d be necessary
to individually weather normalize them | don't think
there's any reason to expect that using that class |evel
response and applying it to individual custoners would
be reasonable for any -- whether done as part of an
audit or as a part of the bill calculation.

Q You covered a |lot of ground there.

A | apologize. | get into this stuff.

Q You were here earlier when M. Lutz took the
stand, correct?

A Yes.

Q You heard M. Lutz provide his explanation of
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how he thought an audit could be perfornmed, correct?

A | did.

Q Wul d you agree that M. Lutz's proposed
met hod of auditing would resolve staff's concerns?

A It wouldn't. You know, it's good to have in
the record what the conpany says they woul d do because
It's certainly not inthe tariff and it's certainly not
in their prefiled tariff, but, you know, we get, we
being staff, not ny departnent in particular, you know,
on a practically daily basis custoners call and ask
about their bills. As part of that it's pretty routine
for sonmeone within staff, depends on what type of
conpl ai nt what departnment it is to request nonthly
billing and ook it up. | don't think it's reasonable
to think that as a part of that audit process we would
be able to replicate the conpany's weat her normalization
of the initial offer much | ess of the current period to
determne if the customer was appropriately billed or |
guess to M. Lutz's point if that was appropriately
reflected in a future rate case.

Q | want to nove on to talk about the FAC. Wre
you here earlier today when | was trying to discuss the
FACwith M. H edik?

A Yes.

Q Real | y hoping I'm pronouncing that correctly.
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This concerns ne. As | understand it, and tell nme if

| " mcorrect, when the subscription pricing rate is set,
the conpany will include all of the current existing
riders like the FAC, the RES RAM the M EAA that are
volunmetric in nature as part of the rate, correct?

A It is ny understanding the conmpany will take
that rate that is in effect at the tine that the offer
is made to the customer and nultiply it by the
normal i zed -- weather normalized usage of that customner
for the prior 12 nonths grossed up by 5 percent and then
apply that rate and then gross that resulting dollar
amount up by up to 10 percent.

Q So if the FACis increased after the custoner
gets on the subscription right, the subscription rate
Isn't subsequently changed to reflect the FAC increase?

A | don't believe it would be subject to change
during that 12-nonth period. | do believe that
custoner's usage woul d, of course, flowinto the FAC and
any increased consunption they woul d have or change at
the time of consunption they would have woul d i npact
current custoners in that subsequent FAR adj ustnent.

Q So this is the point | wanted to make, | need
to get this very clear, a customer on a subscription
rate will not pay any part of a change in the FAC after

their rate is set over the 12-nonth period that their
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rate is in effect?

A Yes. That customer would be insulated from
the FAC rider changes, the M EAA rider changes, the RES
RAM ri der changes and if a securitization charge is
| mposed or trued up during that tine, they would be
exenpted fromapplicability of the securitization charge
as well.

Q So on that last point, | want to make sure
that's clear, if a customer gets on the subscription
rate and there isn't a securitization charge but a
securitization charge is added to general rates after
they get on the subscription rate, that custonmer won't
be paying the securitization charge?

A That customer woul d be bypassing the
securitization charge and they woul d al so be bypassing
changes in the future under that securitization charge.

Q You had nentioned the risk premumearlier
which | was going to get into. So this was another
question that | had posed to M. Hedik. Is it your
understanding -- no, |'ll phrase that as a yes or no
question. Am | correct that the risk prem um adder can
be changed in between rate cases?

A That is my understanding of M. Hedik's
testinmony, and fromwhat | understood of his testinony

ef fectively any amount bel ow 10 percent would be an
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untariffed surcharge or adder in violation of the filed

tariff doctrine.

Q Have you reviewed the tariff itself?

A | have.

Q |'s there anything that guarantees that the
ri sk premum adder is consistent for all customers in
the tariff?

A There is not. And whether that's over time or
whet her that is, you know, if the conpany deci des that
the risk premumis 5 percent, nunber one, | don't know
where that amount woul d be published. Number two, |
don't know if that 5 percent applies to all custonmers or
to sonme subset of custoners, let's say the conmpany
deci des that sone custoners have a 5 percent risk
prem um sone custoners have a 7-1/2 percent. | don't
believe there's anything in the tariff to constrain that
and | don't believe there's anything in the tariff or
the proposed treatnent to notify custoners as that
changes over time so that you could have a very
discrimnatory situation where two custonmers with
i dentical prior usage on this programare receiving
effectively different untariffed rates due to the
conpany's discretionary inposition of these charges and
adders.

Q During the openings, counsel for Evergy drew a
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conparison to events that had played out in a tel ephone

case. \Were you present for that?

A | was. | found that a very strange conparison
given the differences between tel ephone. Tel ephone
pricing based on ny sonmewhat |imted experience is nore
akin especially for a local distribution -- I'msorry.
Let me renenber now. We've got the |ocal exchange.
forget what the C stands for but the LECS. The
t el ephone situation is much nore anal ogous to the
straight fixed variable pricing that used to be conmmon
under gas. |If they want to make a tie to straight fix
variable for the non-gas portion of a custonmer's bill,
that seems nmuch nore reasonable than trying to shoehorn
energy pricing, electricity pricing that has a strong
time based conponent, seasonal conponent, and a capacity
conponent to tel ephone seened highly inapplicable.

Q Wel |, you preenpted ny next question

A Sorry.

Q That's fine. One last thing. To your
knowl edge, in the tel ephone case that was being
descri bed, had the tel ephone conpany nade hundreds of
mllions of dollars in plant investnent designed with
the idea of nmoving towards sonething resenbling its tine
of use rate?

MR, FISCHER: (bjection. | think that calls
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for specul ation.

MR CLIZER I'masking if she knows. |f she
doesn't know, then she doesn't know.

JUDGE HATCHER. Woul d you repeat the question.

MR CLIZER | can try.

BY MR CLI ZER

Q To your understanding, in the tel ephone case
that was di scussed, had the tel ephone conpany made
hundreds of mllions of dollars in plant investment with
the design of noving sonething simlar to tinme of use
rates?

JUDGE HATCHER: |'mgoing to allow it.

THE WTNESS: In ny experience, there is no
metering associated with tel ephone. There's no at hone
device that nonitors the tine at which a custoner used
or does not use the telephone. So | don't think that
that could have occurred at that tinme.

BY MR CLIZER

Q Now, much earlier you had already sort of
preenpted one of ny questions regardi ng weat her
normalization. | want to get this tied down. 1Is it
your understanding that the weather normalization being
proposed here is on a class-w de basis and not on an
I ndi vi dual customer basis?

A My understanding is they' Il be using a class
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weat her normalization factor which is typically

devel oped about 45 days after the close of the billing
period and applying that at some point to that
customer's usage for prior experience period and that's
not how it works. That class value, you can't devel op
an individual customer weather normalization value that
|'"maware of. So using that class value and applying it
to individual custoners is going to give you
non-reliable results for purposes of establishing what a
custoner's usage is to bill them Things that we can do
on an average normalized basis for ratemaking are very
different than things that are reasonable to do to

I ndi vidual customer bills and to establishing a | evel at
which to bill that custoner going forward.

Q The conpany has proposed that this
subscription pricing pronotes energy efficiency by
allow ng the programto be coupled wth other energy
efficiency programs. | amcorrect -- It is correct that
Evergy is currently already offering smart thernostats
wi t hout needing to tie it to a subscription pricing?

A | believe that's a conponent of their M EAA

Q It's also true that the conpany is currently
offering a clean energy charge?

A My understanding is that there is a tariff but
they have not yet billed to facility. |If there's
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further detail on that point, | would defer to either
Cl aire Eubanks or Cedric Cunigan.

Q One last thing. | attenpted this exercise to
a certain degree with M. Hedik. I'mgoing to attenpt

It again because | think it's inportant that we | ook at
the math here. If we were to assume that a custoner
under subscription pricing has an average nonthly bil
of $100. That's our assunption to start wth.

A Ckay. Is this including a $12.42 customer
charge? Can | get that clarification?

Q No, | was originally only referring to the
anount that would be cal cul ated by taking their average
weat her normalized usage, nultiplying it by the rate and
riders in effect and dividing it by 12 which is ny
under st andi ng of how the math works.

A | don't believe that that captures everything
that woul d be subject to the risk adjustment. | believe
that you woul d need to increase that amount by the
custonmer charge as the custoner charge woul d be grossed
up by approxinmately up to | believe it would be $1.24 or
t her eabouts under the risk adjustnent.

Q Right. You' ve thrown ne for a loop. [|'m
going to admt it. |'mgoing to ask you notw thstanding
the custonmer charge. Let's factor the custoner charge

in then to keep things rolling along. So we have our
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base. W then add in the behavioral risk adder, right,

that's 5 percent?

A | think the order of operations matters here.
Let me verify. The behavioral usage adder is going to
take that kW and gross it up by 5 percent.

Q And we're going to also add in the risk
prem um adder and from our conversation with M. Hedik
earlier 1'mgoing to say 5 percent again.

A That's where | found nyself disagreeing with
how you proceeded with M. Hedik. | think that you
have to add all of your adders and then you increase it
by that up to 10 percent. So that's how your custoner
charge beconmes $1.20 higher. That's how your $2.50
charge becones a $2.75 charge. | think that the tines
10 percent occurs after the smart thernostat is added
on, after the clean energy is added on. | think that
all of those ambunts get increased by the up to 10
percent .

MR CLIZER: | can clearly tell that I am not
going to do well if | continue down this train of
t hought. So you know what, |'mgoing to |eave off any
more math questions to soneone nore qualified than I. |
have no further questions. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Any questions from Renew

M ssouri ?
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MS. GREENWALD: No questions, Your Honor.

Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you. And Evergy.
MR, FI SCHER. Just briefly, Judge.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR Fl SCHER:

Q Ms. Lange, | think | read in your testinony
that your title is an econom st for tariff in rate
design departnent, is that right, or roughly that?

A | think my -- we had a reclassification a
nunber of years ago. | think | nay now be known as an
econom st as opposed to a reqgulatory economst. |
apologize if | msstated that.

Q That's not really inportant to ne. You're an
econom st rather than an accountant, correct, or you're
a | awyer anyway?

A | amnot a CPA if that is your question.

Q You're not a regulatory auditor |ike sone of
the fol ks on staff, right?

A That's not ny title, correct.

Q kay. Is it aregulatory auditor listed on
the list of wtnesses for this particular issue?

A For this particular issue due to the 14
program requests made by the conmpany in this case and

the nature of the current staff workl oad, decisions had
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to be nade about econom es of assignnents.

Q | understand. But the answer is no, right?

A | don't believe an auditor filed testinony on
this issue.

Q Ckay. | reviewed your testimony on this topic
in your rebuttal. | started at page 3. Is that where
you di scuss this issue?

A | don't have it in front of ne, but that
sounds about right.

MS. MERS: Did you say her direct?
MR, FI SCHER: No, her rebuttal.
BY MR FI SCHER:
Q D d you address this in direct?
A | did not directly address this in direct as

It was a request by the conpany. As this has
progressed, some of ny direct testinony has becone
relevant to this issue particularly noting that

everyt hing good the conmpany professes could be done by
this could be better done by another program | think I
can give you a cite.

Q That wasn't my question at all. | thought I
was trying to get to where you discussed this issue. |
think it's on page 3 of your rebuttal.

MS. MERS. | apologize for inadvertently

causi ng any confusion by msstating direct, but | had
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asked for rebuttal when | asked if | could approach

because | do have a copy of that testinony for M.
Lange. | apologize for the interruption.

JUDGE HATCHER. Pl ease go ahead.

THE WTNESS: | appreciate it. W try to not
print when we don't absolutely have to.

MR FISCHER: | totally understand. The
record is very large in this case.

MS. MERS. Thank you.

THE WTNESS: Yes.
BY MR FI SCHER:

Q There on page 3 you describe the program and
believe you tal k about concerns. \Were in that prefiled
testinony do you raise concerns about the ability of
staff to audit the pilot progran?

A Well, | state that it's unreasonable and the

Comm ssion inprimatur should not be placed on it.

Q | saw that, but where did you say --

A |'"msorry. You interrupted nme there,
M. Fischer.

Q | apol ogize. [|'msorry.

A And | continue that the approach M. Lutz
described creates a below the [ine revenue stream |f
the programis adopted, revenues fromthe program shoul d

be recognized in future rate cases but future shortfalls
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shoul d be absorbed by Evergy. | go on to say that that

proposed treatment is not symmretrical. Necessarily if
we're dealing with this in a future case, we'll have to
know what those streams on both on the foregone revenue
in terns of rates not charged and the revenues collected
t hrough this program

Q Ckay. | see that. Were in that prefiled
testinony do you raise concerns about the ability of
staff to audit it?

A Well, that would be the part where | say it's
I nherently unreasonable and it creates m smatched
revenue streans.

Q Ckay. That's where that is. Were do you
mention any concerns about hourly usage?

A That woul d be where | state that it is
I nherently unreasonable and we do not reconmmend it as
pronul gated, that it's a bad idea wth a bad design for
no real end goal. |'mhappy to discuss those further if
you' d |iKke.

Q No, that's all right. M question was just
where did you discuss it. | also found it curious did
understand you to say that back in the tel ephone exanple
there's no metering of tel ephone usage?

A No, no, I"'msorry. | stated at honme that

there's not a telephone neter is ny recollection.
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Q But the central office does clearly neter

t el ephone usage, right?

A And that would not be a site situated
I nvest ment conparable to AM netering.

Q That's your main distinction then?

A That was the distinction asked in the
questi on.

Q Local neasured service certainly was a netered
charge, right?

A | don't think that was the question | was
posed by M. Cizer. |If you d like to ask a different
questi on.

Q ' masking you that. |Is l[ocal neasured
service, back in those days was it netered by the
t el ephone conpany?

A Are you asking if there was a nmeter in place
on residences?

Q No, |'m asking whether they kept track of the
m nutes of use, time of use.

A | believe so in nost cases if not all.

Q And they also in the case of long distance
kept track of the geographic area where it went to. So
It was a distance sensitive rate, right?

A |"msorry. Are you testifying on this matter

at this point?
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Q | ' m aski ng you what your recollection was.

A My recollection was related to the
applicability of a metering system conparable to AM for
t el ephone custoners.

Q Do you happen to know -- You were testifying
about that case. Do you happen to know whether the
staff opposed mandatory |ocal neasured service?

A | don't believe | was testifying about that
case. | believe | testified about whether or not there
were AM conparabl e equi pnent associated with tel ephone
service.

Q Do you know whet her the staff opposed the use
of mandatory | ocal service?

A | don't.

MR FISCHER: Ckay. That's all | have. I'm
sorry. | do have one other question.

May | approach the w tness, Judge?

JUDGE HATCHER:  Yes.
BY MR FI SCHER:

Q Ms. Lange, I'mgoing to ask you to just read
the paragraph in our proposed tariff that defines
subscription pricing offer. Wuld you do that for nme?

A | have it right here.

Q Ch, do you? (kay.

A Sorry. You're asking me to read the
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definition that is in your proposed tariff?

Q ' mlooking at original sheet 5E. Is that the
one you're |ooking at?

A | do. | have Metro version

Q Ckay. Yeah, down at the bottom of the page it
has a subscription pricing offer. Could you read that
into the record for nme?

A A fixed monthly bill amount offered for
service. This anount is determ ned based on expected
usage adjusted for weather, behavioral change adder,
program cost adder, risk premum riders, taxes and
customer charge. The subscription pricing offers wll
be updated annual |y based on then current conditions and
costs. The subscription price offer will include
pricing for a smart thernostat and cl ean energy add-ons
i f opted by the custoner.

MR. FI SCHER: Thank you very much. That's al
| have, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you. That will take us
to Conm ssioner questions. Are there any Conm ssioner
questions for M. Lange?

COMM SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  No questi ons, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Comm ssi oner.
Hearing none, the bench does have one.

QUESTI ONS

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

Page 589
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q And this is the question that was punted to
you by your colleague Ms. King. Does the Conmi ssion
maintain the ability to review or adjust any revenue or
expense posted below the |ine associated with this
filing?

A My answer is that is a good question. | think
that what has been carefully stated in M. Lutz's
testinony today indicated that this revenue streamis
hel d below the Iine for purposes of this case as this
pilot. | think that inferring fromM. Lutz's testinony
and M. Hedik's testinmony in certain areas indicates
that there is an interest that this will not maintain
pilot status going forward and at that tine M. Hedik
testifies, let nme get the | anguage correct here, that he
states that when subscription pricing is available to
all custoners and participation has reached its
anticipated steady state |evel, program cost adders
intended to fully recover subscription pricing program
costs. At that point nonparticipants will not bear
subscription pricing programcosts. In the pilot phase
only a noderate program of program admnistration costs
may be socialized across the residential class as
referred to by Ms. Wnslow. | think that where it gets

iffy is we are in this case acting as though this bel ow
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the line treatment will continue going forward and the

answer to that question is | don't know. In the past
when we've inquired about areas for which recovery is
not sought, we have been told no, that that information
Is not available. | think the nore realistic case is
that we wll have a future rate case in which this
recovery is requested fromnonparticipants. So even
though in this tariff here and in this -- well, | should
say in this testinony. There's nothing in the tariff
off the top of ny head that indemifies nonparticipants,
but | think that we have gotten clear signals fromthe
conpany that going forward it's expected that
nonparticipants will subsidize this program That said,
and | know this is a convol uted response, you know, |
think that in the past when we've inquired about this
sort of -- well, there has been no this sort. 1In the
past when we've inquired about below the |ine revenues
and below the line activities, it is pretty common that

that DR does not get responded to.

Q ' munconfortable with that generalization
A Ckay.
Q |'"mnore interested in this exanple did Evergy

not respond or?
A Wel |, so there has been no data to request so

far. So that's where | was getting at. On prior
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experi ence we haven't gotten information readily about
below the line activities. Again, in this case, even if
we do get information, if we're tal king about the usage
data to 20,000 to 40,000 custoners and a nornmalization
procedure and redoing that procedure for a historic
period of who knows how many nmonths and years it is
likely that we will be unable to attenpt to replicate
that procedure.

JUDGE HATCHER.  Ckay. Thank you. That w |
take us to recross-exam nation.

MR CLIZER: No questions. Thank you, Your
Honor .

JUDGE HATCHER:  Renew M ssouri .

MS5. GREENWALD: No questions. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: And Evergy.

MR, FISCHER: No, thank you, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: And redirect.

MS. MERS: Good afternoon, Ms. Lange.

THE WTNESS: Good afternoon

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. MERS:

Q You were asked sone questions by OPC and you
also got at this a bit in your answer to the bench's
question. But why would it be difficult for staff to
audit this type of progran?
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A So the mssing pieces are those pieces that

are subject to the conpany discretion. So if there are
I ndi vi dual customer specific risk premuns, that's going
to be a volume of information that's just going to be
hard to handle. There will be customers who enter the
program and | eave the programthat that $50 fee for
departure and that the true-up payment, you know, all
the discussion of there is no true-up, it's right there
in the termof the contract that there is the potenti al
for, I'mtrying to nake sure what they call it, the
reconciliation fee. So howto cal culate that
reconciliation fee is sonething that | think we will all
struggle with. The conpany has indicated in data
request responses that they'|ll decide when or when not
to charge that $50 fee, as well as | think the
reconciliation fee.

The biggest issue really is this weather
normal i zation problem So if we could have the usage
for the up to 40,000 custoners in a useable fornmat,
which in this case we were unable to acquire for the TQU
customers in useable format, and their cohort in useable
format, weather nornalization is a class average
response to weather or a subclass level. So if you have
a stormand half the customers stay honme, half go about

life as usual, class weather normalization will indicate
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hal f of the appropriate adjustment to custoners who

stayed honme and inpose an inappropriate adjustnent on
customers who proceeded as usual. So we're going to
have to step through all of that.

So the question is, did the conpany accurately
weat her normalize according to their procedures which
are not set out in any tariff or any governing docunent,
but it will also be did they appropriately weather
normal i ze as best as you can individual custoner and
that's tough. That's sonething fromtime to time that
occurs for purposes of revenue normalization and billing
determ nate normalization | ooking forward but
Ineffectively this is |ooking backward and aski ng what
woul d this custoner, this particular custoner, what
woul d they have used if the weather were different and
that's a bridge that I'mnot aware we've ever attenpted
to cross.

Q | apol ogi ze. | should have probably started
with this question, but we've been using the term audit
and you did receive some questions by counsel for Evergy
about your qualifications.

In terms of a staff audit, is it just
review ng | edgers or do people who are not accountants
primarily handl e things such as revenue?

A Yes. So | amin the tariff and rate design
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department under the managenent of M. Luebbert and our

department is primarily responsible for the devel opment
of revenues and nornalized revenues in a rate case.

That woul d fall under this view of trying to calculate
the normalized revenues for this program as well as,
you know, we're calling it a pilot but I'mnot aware of
any |earning objectives or sort of detailed criteria the
Commi ssion has typically required for pilots, but those
pilot reviews are typically done by the tariff rate
desi gn departnment or the engineering anal ysis departnent
or, oh gosh, the resource adequacy and sonething
departnment. | apologize. |'ve gotten our nanmes turned
around. Yes, typically those prudence type -- well, you
can't even call it a prudence reviewin this case, but
typically those reviews, those whether or not objectives
have been fulfilled, those are typically reviewed by
peopl e who do not have the title of auditor.

Q To your know edge even for actual accountants
and auditors when they do their portion of a rate case,
and | believe this is true for anybody performng that
type of work, it's usually touched by sonebody who's not
an auditor or accountant to weather normalize. |Is that
your understanding? Wuld you agree with that?

A So the weat her normalization process is also

typically perfornmed by J Luebbert's departnment which is

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

) ) Page 595
the tariff rate design departnent.

Q And back to the kind of difficulties we woul d
have with a reviewif we want to try to avoid the term
audit. Would it be possible at this time to even know
what information we'd be I acking?

A No. | nean, what we heard today from Ms.

W nsl ow was conpletely contraindicated by her direct
testinony in ternms of the willingness to put anounts on
bills. Now, | think that given the tinme |apse that's
necessary to cone up with a class |evel weather
nornalization factor, that's typically in the range of
45 to 60 days past the close of the billing cycle. |
don't see how it would be possible to put the custoner's
current period weather normalized usage on a bill. |If
there is, I'd have even nore concerns about the weat her
normal i zation process. But you know, this is such an

I nadequate tariff with so many questions, you know,
expected nonthly kW usage it says will be adjusted for
vacancy. What does that nean? WII the conpany be
asking custoners, you know, hey, did your kid have sone
sl eepovers |l ast month? Hey, is your no good
brother-in-law back in town? You know, how does that
get established and how does that get adjusted. | can't
know what questions to ask for a programreview when a

tariff is this poorly described and this broad in its
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conpany's discretion. You know, it's inpossible to

really guess howthis will actually be executed by the
conpany in terns of what's literally in this tariff.
mean, we've heard some testinony today and there's been
sone prefiled testinmony, but there's nothing binding the
conpany to treating it that way.

Q Even for the nondiscretionary itens, the FAC,
the RES RAMthat will be bundled in this, would it be
difficult for parties who are trying to review or the
Conmi ssion who is trying to ook at this in future cases
to unwi nd those rate conponents?

A No. | nean, that's what's unique about this
proposal is you're effectively setting up 40,000
untariffed rates you need to each custoner. So we're
going to have to get what their actual usage was for
each of those periods to cal culate what those rider
charges were as they change over tine. That's easier
for some. RES RAMis adjusted once a year. That's
harder for FAC. That's adjusted twice a year. And you
know, when you |ayer securitization in, then that's just
another rate elenment that's changing with the real
difficulty of going back. You know, we're not
calcul ating class average revenue at that point. W
have to go back because of this 5 percent deposit

through the | think M. Cdizer called it a rebate, |
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think of it as a deposit, to determne if that

behavi oral usage adder was properly applied because we
can't determ ne whether or not that 5 percent went back
wi t hout determ ning what the underlying amount was, what
the actual anmount was, and then what the difference
between the two were that's due to the conpany's weat her
normal i zati on process.

Q So when you speak on weat her normalization
woul d there also be difficulty when it comes to extrene
abnor mal weat her inpacts?

A Yeah. | mean, it is assumng a class average
response inputed to each individual custoner and that's
just not reasonable to do. You know, and | think it's
interesting that the consultant M. H edik kept
referring to this EV charging, you know, because that's
not weat her dependent. That's a dedicated charge for a
time based EV consunption. | can't inmagine anything
more different fromtime based EV charges to M ssour
weat her, which I'mglad I'mnot typically |ooking at
weat her normal i zation processes because boy, have we got
an interesting state.

Q | guess to put a fine point on why we're
concerned about the audit in review, does this inpact
both participants and nonparticipants?

A So because of the way the Mssouri FAC
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operates, I f customers in this program use nore eneragy,

that additional energy cost goes into the FAC. Wile
there's been a lot of talk about how this can be bundl ed
with MEAA prograns, | think M. Hedik testified kind
of the anti M EAA position. In his surrebuttal he
states if usage does increase, proportionately higher
usage during non-peak hours could result in a rate
decrease for all customers due to Evergy's capital cost
bei ng spread over proportionately larger sales base. So
that's the exact opposite of the theory behind pushing
M EAA and particularly the earnings opportunity. So how
this plays through the FAC, how this insulates custoners
fromthe MEAA rider charge, you know, if you think
about it fromwhat | understand, and again this isn't
spelled out in the tariff, but if customers purchase
this smart thernostat through the tariff, presumably
they're going to be causing there to be an increase in
the M EAA throughput disincentive that the conpany gets
to retain for selling | ess energy even though the
custoner may well be using nore energy. That's a
conpl et e di sconnect.

Q You were asked by counsel for Evergy about
your rebuttal testinony and where in which staff
concerns were listed in that. Do you recall those

questions?
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A | do.

Q Did parties file surrebuttal on this issue in
this case?

A. M. Hedik did.

Q Wul d today be your only proper opportunity to
respond to that testinmony and address your concerns?

A That | amaware of, yes, and M. Hedik
certainly raised additional concerns in his -- or gave
cause for staff to have additional concerns in his
surrebuttal.

Q You were al so asked by M. Fischer about the
t el ephone service and electric service. Do you recal
that l[ine of questioning?

A | do.

Q To your know edge, did tel ephone conpanies
have a M EAA?

A ' mnot aware of anything replicating M EAA
Again, this would be just part of the inapplicability of
the exanpl e tel ephone conpani es didn't have production
facilities and didn't participate in integrated energy
markets that are anything akin to today's RTGs.

Q So tel ephone conpanies didn't have to purchase
m nutes from ot her tel ephone conpanies if usage was
hi gh?

A You are going beyond nmy recollection of '80s
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and ' 90s tel ephone regul ation.

M5. MERS. (kay. | will stop there then
That is all | have. Thank you all.
JUDGE HATCHER. Thank you, Ms. Lange. You are

excused.

(Wtness excused.)

JUDGE HATCHER: W are going to take a break
here. Before we do, | just want to ring out do we have

two renmaining Wtnesses? Are they both OPC s? Renew
Mssouri's attorney is on the line. Is Wtness Fracica
still scheduled for today? | mght be m spronouncing
t he nane.

MS. GREENWALD: Fracica is correct actually,
yes. M. Fracica's testinony was just related to some
of the pilot prograns that are being resolved. So he
will not be testifying today.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Understood. Thank you. We
wi Il come back with our final two, two w tnesses at
3:30. That is 16 mnutes away. 3:30. W are in recess
and off the record.

(Recess from3:14 p.m to 3:30 p.m)

JUDGE HATCHER. Ckay. Qur recess having
expired, let's go back on the record. Dr. Marke, you
were already sworn in. That's still applicable. Please

have a seat. And M. di zer.
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DR GEOFF MARKE,

havi ng been previously sworn, was exanm ned and testified
as foll ows:

MR CLIZER Dr. Marke's testinony has already
been of fered and accepted. | therefore tender the
Wi tness for cross-exam nation.

JUDGE HATCHER: Everyone has heard M. Qi zer.
That will go first to Ms. Mers for cross-exam nation.

MS. MERS. (Good afternoon, Dr. Marke.

THE WTNESS: Good afternoon.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY Ms. MERS:

Q Are you famliar with the direct testinony of
Evergy wi tness Ryan H edik?

A | am

Q Are you famliar with his statements regarding
t he nessagi ng Evergy suggests to use with custoners?

A Not off the top of ny head. |f you've got a
copy of that. Unfortunately |I don't have M. Hedik's
testinmony in front of ne.

MR. CLIZER: Wi ch version?

MS. MERS: | have been going off of the --
MR CLIZER: Direct?

MS. MERS. Yes, direct in the Metro case. W

can probably | guess maybe --
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MR CLIZER: Perm ssion to approach. This is

direct of Metro.

BY MS. MERS:

Q |"ve lost my copy of it. | believe it was on
page 6.

A "' mthere.

Q There was statements for 130 -- okay. |

apol ogi ze guys. If you give ne a second to regroup.

Actually page 3 to 4. The conparison behind
this program has been the subscription based prograns
and it is -- he states that it offers, then if you go to
page 4 on line 3, a sinple no risk financial incentive
that rewards custoners for limting their energy usage
when enrolled in the offering. Do you believe from what
you' ve seen in this case that the messagi ng behind that
actual Iy encourages energy efficiency?

A No, absolutely not.

Q Do you believe it would -- this program and
the nmessaging behind it contradicts MEAA and the
conpany's efforts in the energy efficiency space?

A My rebuttal testinony spoke about buffet style
pricing. That's probably the best way |'d [ ook at it.
So when we price electricity, think about how from an
econom st you really want to get that pricing down

correctly, that price signal that you're trying to send
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to custoners.

If you go to a restaurant and a waiter was
st andi ng over you and charging you for every bite you
t ook, your behavior would be such where you' d be very
conscious of every bite you took and pretty soon it
woul d be an unenjoyabl e experience and | would render to
say you probably woul dn't have -- your caloric intake
woul d be less than it otherw se woul d be.

Now, if | go to a buffet, I'mpaying a flat
fee, and I'meating as nuch as | want, as nmuch as | can.
In fact, | want to get ny noney's worth out of it. Wen
Ms. Lange tal ks the antithesis of MEAA we spent
hundreds of mllions of dollars. You throwin the AM
technol ogy, you're talking close to a billion dollars
over the past decade in MEAA related prograns, in
meters, in software. Al that stuff is idle effectively
right nowin terms of pricing. Al of that is sunk
costs that the conpany is earning sonething off of but
It's not going towards reduced bills, that collective
good for all ratepayers which is what it's designed to
be. That's howit was sold to us. That's how -- |
personal |y work, you know, a considerabl e anount of
hours on M EAA prograns and M EAA rel ated prograns.

This woul d underm ne it, because buffet style, again,

think of it as a custoner going -- the customer in this
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case like going on a diet. It's for their own good

being healthy. If you're just going to buffet style
pricing, they're going to consume nore. Again, that
just underm nes any of the savings that was taking place
at that individual MEAA |evel

Q Do you believe that the nessaging or the
tariff also admts key details that could increase costs
to participants?

A There's been a I ot of discussion about the
various different charges and the fees and how t hat
woul d actually work and I know M. H edik tal ks about
sinple, transparent, and predictable. Those were three
words | woul d not use to characterize how this case has
been evolving at |east today. | think there's
di sagreenent, you know, amongst all three parties as to
exact|ly what custoners are going to be charged in a
given year. As an untariffed rate, we're talking 40, 000
custoners that need to be weather nornalized, that need
to be factored in with all of the additional surcharges
that are on there.

Staff gets calls. W get calls. W get lots
of calls fromcustomers that don't understand their
bills or are struggling or any number of odd things. |
woul d struggle in the role that I'"'min today trying to

explain to themexactly why they got paid -- or were
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having to be charged what they're being charged given at

| east the information that's been presented to nme today.

Q Are you also famliar with his testinony, and
| believe it was al so nentioned today at the hearing and
even in the opening statements, the nap of the other
states and the simlar prograns to this around the
nation?

A Yeah. [|'mlooking at it now on page 7 of his
testinony. That's the same map.

Q Yes. Are you aware of any trends or contexts
that woul d make this programinappropriate for the state
at this tim?

A Well, | nmean, let's |ook at that map. Wat
you see is a concentration |argely southeast states.
You' d have a handful of Duke Energy related states. |
think M. Hedik characterized it as two buckets.
There's a | egacy bucket and then there's an adder
bucket. Legacy bucket is largely your southeast
utilities right there, your Ceorgia Power, your Al abama
Power. These are |arge coal -generated, |arge nuclear,
| arge huge capital investnent intensive utilities that
are not winning any Triple E awards, |'Il tell you that,
in terms of energy efficiency or push for that.

|f you look at trends across the United

States, you'll note that there is no western states that
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are utilizing this. There's no eastern states that are

utilizing this. | would venture to say, and |I know his
testinony doesn't go into any detail about this, but the
exanpl e that he did give, Xcel Energy, which | would
consider is a fairly progressive utility, that exanple
Is so far different than the one we're tal king about
here. That exanple is really limted to just a neter
for EV cars. That's it. Not the EV on the hone -- not
the nmeter on the hone on your consunption but just the
EV cars. That's designed really just to have custoners
use energy during non-peak periods. Again, not an issue
here. There's nothing tenporal about what we're doing.
Al'l of the headache that we dealt with with Storm Ui,
all the headache that we're dealing with with fue
costs. Any tinme you get, you know, any news that you
get in the media that tal ks about the inportance of, you
know, the increase in the energy costs that we're
attributing to it is really a byproduct of that tenporal
period, what's that cost of energy during that peak
period. That's the inpact. That's the inpact that
we' re tal king about. And you're getting a nuted price
signal. That's what's taking place with a fixed bill.

Q Are you famliar with Contessa King's
testinony in this case?

A Yes.
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Q And woul d you agree that her concerns about

COVI D and ot her econom ¢ considerations would al so
I mpact when you're | ooking at what states have adopted
this type of program and when?

A Timng definitely matters. | nean, the |egacy
programs that we're tal king about have been in place for
decades | nean really that predate a ot of what we're
tal king about here in terms of grid nodernization, a
more carbon -- |ess intensive carbon environment. So
yeah, timng matters. | know -- | can't speak a whole
| ot about Alliant or Indiana M chigan Power. But the
devil will be in the details. Again, none of these
tariff rates were in testinmony. It's just what
M. Hedik described on the record earlier.

Q Do you have a copy of M. Hedik's surrebutta

with you?
A | have a feeling ny counsel has a copy.
Q | can give it to you. |If it's okay to

approach. At page 15 he makes a statenent that this

programis justified by Evergy's cost structure. Do you

see that?
A | do.
Q Isn't it true that this programw || not true

up or adjust a participant's bill for actual energy use

at the end of the 12-nonth period?
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A That's correct.

Q So if a custoner utilizes nore energy than
assumed, thus causing nore costs to be borne by Evergy,
It would cause nore costs to be borne by Evergy all else
bei ng equal, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And presumably going forward if it's not bel ow
the line it would be all customers that would bear those
costs?

A If it's not, yes.

Q But that is not ever captured in that nonthly
charge -- strike that. That is not calculated in the
mont hly charge, correct?

A That's correct.

Q So this wouldn't be a cost-based rate,
correct?

A That's correct.

Q Wul d you agree it's a further step away from
cost - based rates?

A Yes.

Q And even further fromtine of use?

A Yes.

Q Has the Conm ssion provi ded any gui dance on
the appropriateness of cost-based rates?

A The Conmi ssion has been, | believe, pretty
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darn cl ear about wanting to nove towards cost-based

rates as nuch as possible.

Q In terns of pronoting energy efficiency,
apol ogi ze, grid flexibility, does the --

THE STENOGRAPHER: ['msorry. Can you start
t hat again?

M5. MERS. Yes, | can. | apologize for that.
BY MS. MERS:

Q In terms of pronoting energy efficiency and
grid flexibility, does the subscription nodel offer any
advant ages over time of use rates?

A It offers an advantage to the participant. |If
you're a participant, | can see the value in saying |
want a fixed fee and I'mjust going to pay this dollar
anount and not have to worry about all the consequences
of ny actions. The problemhere is that, you know, if
the conpany is going to spend billions of dollars year
over year, those costs need to be recovered. And the
sunk investnment that we've made in neters and software,
in MEAA, all of that is an opportunity cost. Quite
frankly, if | could go back in tine and say ten years
ago before we dropped a billion dollars on this stuff
and say hey, custoners can only bear so much noney
before they start having pitchforks in the street, we've

got a billion dollars here, can we spend it on neters so
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we can price electricity cost of service and | ower

collectively cost of fuel and rates, let's do it. But
if we're not going to use that stuff, think about what
el se that billion dollars could have gone to. Could
have gone back into ratepayers' pockets, could have gone
towards putting on nore renewabl es, coul d have gone
towards any nunber of things. The list is endless.
It's an opportunity cost. This is a sunk cost that

we' re tal king about at this point. W are so close at
this point to actually getting time of use rates, every
other utility has got it, that this would be m ssing
that mark right at that point where we should get a
return on our investnent.

Q Were you here for M. Fischer's opening this
mor ni ng?

A | was.

Q D d you hear his statement that attenpted to
tie the concerns presented | believe it was |ast Friday
regarding AM neters with this programutilizing AM
met er technol ogy?

A Yes.

Q Does this programrequire AM technol ogy?

A No. It requires a neter. It requires a meter
just to tell you how much kW you' ve consuned at the end

of the year. That's it.
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Q One of the other benefits that's been touted

Is the smart thernostats. Does Evergy already offer
smart thernostats through other prograns?

A The smart thernostat is a programin their
Conm ssi on approved M EAA

Q That neans that they earn programcosts, admn
costs, and earnings opportunity?

A That's correct.

Q | s Evergy proposing asymmetrical risk sharing
in this case? In other words, would all programcosts
get charged to all customers aside fromthe only up to
2.50, $2.50, | should make that clear, that could be
charged per nonth for the participants, but is it your
understanding that all of that woul d be charged, the
rest of that would be charged to all custoners but al
potential benefits would go to sharehol ders?

A That's my understanding. It is admttedly a
bit -- My natural inclination is to go ahead and think
about extremes in given situations. But if we operate
under the assunption that customers aren't going to
change their behavior rapidly one way or the other,
which I'mnot sure is necessarily the right assunption,
the conpany has put forward that this woul d be designed
to reduce consunption. | just got through telling you

that | think it would have the sane opposite effect if
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1 you had a buffet style pricing. | think it would

2 increase consunption. |If we operate under the

3 assunption that they' re not going to deviate too nmuch

4 one way or the other, then, yeah, it would effectively

5 Dbe an opportunity for the utility to generate revenues

6 for itself.

7 Q | think this is ny last |ine of questioning

8 But does Evergy also tout in the future that demand

9 response could be a potential benefit of this progranf
10 A They may have.

11 Q To clarify, in conjunction if the smart neters
12 were offered. | apol ogize.

13 A Smart thernostats?

14 Q Yes. | apol ogi ze.

15 A Those two really have nothing to do with each
16 other. They're really divorced fromeach other.

17 Q Have stakehol ders in other contexts expressed
18 concerns about how Evergy utilizes their existing demand
19 response prograns?
20 A We have been very vocal about it. | know
21 staff has too in multiple different M EAA prudence
22 reviews.
23 MS. MERS. Thank you very nuch. | have
24 nothing further.
25 JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And Ms. G eenwal d,
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Renew M ssouri .

MS. GREENVALD: No questions, Your Honor.
Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER. Thank you. And the conpany.

MR, FISCHER: No, thank you, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. That will take us
to Conm ssioner questions. Are there any Conm ssioner
questions for Dr. Marke? M apologies, Dr. Mrke, | do.
' mgoing to get you through the whole rigmarole all
again.

QUESTI ONS
BY JUDCGE HATCHER:

Q This is again a retread question. Does the
Conmi ssion maintain the ability to review or adjust any
revenue or expense posted below the [ine associated with
this pilot, and | think I'mgoing to have to distinguish

between the pilot and the program given the testinmony we

j ust had.

A | mean, | think the Conm ssion can order just
about anything. |'mprobably not the best person at the
end of the day to answer that. | struggle to see how

exactly that would play out.
Q So your testinmony is the Comm ssion would not
have that power but you're distinguishing it based on

having the information rather than the legal authority?
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A Right. | nean, | think the Comm ssion can go

ahead and direct the conpany to do things or the

Commi ssion can direct the conpany to disclose the dollar
amounts, you know, the overall inmpact | think froman
enpirical standpoint. |In terns of actually touching the
utility's profits, I'mnot entirely sure.

JUDGE HATCHER  That was all the questions
had. Hold on just a mnute. As forewarned, we'll go
back to recross-exam nation. M. Mers.

MS. MERS: Just very, very briefly.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY Ms. MERS:

Q You were asked about the potential to | ook at
t hese and prudence reviews or whatever we would like to
termit in the future. Has it been your experience that
st and-al one prudence review cases are on a very
condensed tineline?

A Yes, very.

Q Has it been your experience that if the
Comm ssion orders it to be reviewed in a rate case, that
just adds to the, as parties sawfromthe initial |ist
of issues filed, the amount of workload and topics that
need to be reviewed by parties?

A There's no shortage of the conplexity that

we' re being asked to bear on a daily basis.
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Q Does that nmake it difficult to do a thorough

review in either situation?

A Most definitely.

Q And is access to information sonething that
conpounds that?

A It's an inherent problem asymetrical
Information. You need to know the correct way to ask
questions. Oten you have to phrase it many different
times to get the information that you actually want. It
Is definitely challenging.

MS. MERS. Thank you. That was all | had.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you. That will take us
to Renew M ssouri.

MS5. GREENWALD: No questions. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And to the
conpany.

MR, FISCHER: No, thank you, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. That brings us to
redirect.

MR CLIZER: Thank you, Your Honor. Good
afternoon, Dr. Marke.

THE WTNESS: Good afternoon

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR CLI ZER

Q Let's start with the question fromthe
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Comm ssion. You were asked if it would be possible for

the Conm ssion to order an adjustnent below the |ine,
and | think that your answer had to do with the
availability of information. Do | have that correct?

A That's accurate.

Q In your opinion, to what extent could the
Comm ssion order a tracking nechanismrelated to this
program and shoul d t hey?

A | don't think the Conm ssion should. | don't
think the Conmm ssion should deviate at the zero hour
here fromnoving towards actually realizing benefits
fromour AM neters and pivoting off of years of MEAA
and other investnents and directives. | think it really
woul d need to categorically change how our office
operates and even staff if we're noving towards buffet
style pricing.

Q You were asked a question from counsel for
staff about smart thernostats, whether or not they were
al ready being offered. Do you recall that?

A | do.

Q How is the smart thernostat program designed
to pronote energy efficiency, just a bit of background?

A So thernmostats, traditional thernostats are
pretty straight forward, nove back and forth, if you

want it colder or hotter. It takes alittle while to --
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It usually goes over the prescribed |evel that you set

it. It kicks back on after a certain period. Smart
thernostats are designed to go ahead and nudge you a
little bit lower, a little bit higher depending on the
season to induce energy savings. There's a second
conponent to that which is autonatic direct control
You m ght have heard |ike Col orado, Xcel Energy was in
the news | ast week because there was a big uproar about
the utility taking control of their thernostats and
changing -- controlling the thernostat degrees, you
know, one way or the other. That option exists for
Evergy, and that's the other elenment of a smart

t her nost at .

Q To the extent that that programis currently
being offered, would it be nore enticing to a custoner
on what |'Il termtraditional rates or to a customer on
subscription rates?

A Traditional rates nost definitely.

Q Wy is that?

A Your payback period. Think of it this way.
Whether it's a thernostat or an HVAC or anything el se,
it's really difficult, first of all, | can't stress this
enough. If | were to get an Energy Star HVAC in ny
house, | know intuitively that okay, maybe not

intuitively, | know that, you know, if given my current
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consunption over a |ong enough period, say, five, six,

seven years, it will pay for itself. R ght? The
problemis | mght have to drop $25,000 to go ahead and
install that correctly and to get that up and running.
That's a lot of nmoney for nost famlies. That's a huge
investment. Most famlies will wait until that HVAC
actually fails before they actually put sonmething in
operati on.

If I go to subscription pricing to a fixed
price where |'mguaranteed that I'mgoing to get a
certain, whatever, it doesn't nmatter how nuch energy |
consune |I'mgoing to pay this fixed fee, why would | go
ahead and get an Energy Star? Wiy would | drop the
additional ten grand or whatever to get the best nodel,
the nost efficient nodel? 1'mgoing to pay the exact
sane dol | ar amount regardl ess.

Now, M. Hedik says that well, we would
rebase it a year fromnow | tell you, a year from now
"Il probably just go ahead and drop off the rate. |I'l
go on to sonething else, if I"'mreally that savvy about
this. But at a mninuml won't buy it, | won't purchase
that stuff.

So when we | ook at cost effective test under
M EAA, when we | ook at -- one of the principles that we

| ook is what's that payback period, what's that payback
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period for an investment, right, when ny return on ny

I nvestment. And you're not seeing that with
subscription pricing.

It's the same fundanental argument we have,
and you're going to hear this tonorrow when we talk
about the custoner charge, that the customer charge is
an automatic fixed fee that you're going to pay every
month. Well, if we just jack that custoner charge up to
save 40 bucks or 50 bucks, which is not out of the realm
of issues or exanples in the past, you're just
di m ni shing that variable conponent which neans that
|"ve got |less incentive to be nore energy efficient,

So having sone consistency, everything is
I nterdependent. So rate design, rate offerings are very
I nterdependent with these programofferings that we're
havi ng sinul taneously. The conpany is going to cone up,
you know, a year fromnow or within the next year for
Its next M EAA application. | guarantee, | nean, if
this were an approved rate, if we were noving toward
subscription pricing, we would need to reeval uate how we
| ook at M EAA and how that nmakes sense with supporting a
program where you're getting these nuted price signals.
It woul d inmpact everything. So, yes, traditional rates.

Q You were asked a question from counsel for

staff about the energy efficiency and grid flexibility
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that's been suggested comes with subscription pricing

and whet her that offered any advantages over tine of use
rates. Do you recall that question?

A | do.

Q | believe in your response you nentioned how
close we are to time of use rates. Do you recall saying
t hat ?

A | did.

Q Wel |, so in your opinion, are these two rates
In conpetition or why does that matter?

A They are in conpetition. Let's say -- | don't
think you can have it both ways legitimtely. Eight
plus years, 14 studies, two rounds of AM hardware
I nvestment and software investnent. |f we were -- if
the Conmi ssion were to approve tinme of use rates and
subscription pricing, effectively it would go back to
what | said before. If |I'"'ma rational consuner, | would
do subscription pricing. | would personally benefit
fromthis and nonparticipants wuld be harnmed at | east
initially. Over the long term this will result in
greater bills for everybody because first of all that
sunk investnment that's sitting idle, right, | didn't
need that AM neter, but it's also, and this goes into
my testinony about a feedback |oop with rate design. So

how we set rates is going to determne howthe utility
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generates or puts nore investnent nmoving forward. So if

the overal|l energy increases for Evergy, you will see
more investnent on distribution, nore investment on
transm ssion, nore investment on generation. It's a
feedback loop and it's just going -- and that's how --
this is where | took the position that arguably | feel
like this is a pronotional rate and in violation of
PURPA st andards because it noves towards the consunption
and agai nst conservation and efficiency.

Q Just to clarify that last point there. Wen
you say that it's in violation of PURPA, first of all,
can you define what PURPA is?

A Public Uility --

Q |f you can't renenber off the top of your
head, that's fine.

A It stems frombasically the energy crisis in
late '70s. It was a novement towards cost-based rates
and away from pronotional rates. So declining blocks
unl ess they could be supported within that cost
structure. Really since |'ve been here, | mean, | feel
| i ke the Conm ssion has been giving us the directive and
pointing the needle towards nore cost-based rates and
becom ng nore efficient in that and under the pretense
that ultimately in the long run this will be better for

all custonmers that all custoners will benefit fromthis.
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| f you nove towards -- If you have the option

of subscription rates, again, certain custoners wll
definitely benefit in the short run off of this,

al though | would argue in the long run they' Il end up
paying nore too. You're nullifying all the work we've
done in, you know, it would be taking several steps back
if it was adopted on a grand scal e.

Q What | wanted to clarify regardi ng PURPA and
your feedback | oop comment, it's correct that you see
subscription pricing as sonething that encourages |arger
consunption, doesn't reduce usage but encourages nore
usage; is that right?

A That's correct.

Q All right. You were asked a question from
staff regarding other states and there was brief mention
of Xcel and you tal ked about how it was different. Do
you recall that?

A | do.

Q You nentioned sonething about this not being a
tenmporal issue, and | want to make sure that that's
clear. The current subscription pricing programthat's
before the Conm ssion does not consider when charging
occurs; is that what you nmeant?

A It only | ooks at just the overall energy. It

doesn't | ook at the denand el enent.
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Q That's a distinction between what's being

proposed here and Xcel or what exactly do you mean?

A Vell, two fold. One, there's a difference
between this and Xcel. Xcel is talking about a neter, a
separate neter just for EV cars. That's it. And
they're incentivizing those EV cars to charge on off
peak hours. That's why it was w dely adopted and
accept ed.

Mre to the point of why that's a problemin
this case is there is no tenporal element. |[It's just on
an annual basis. W know that both the price of
electricity in the SPP is higher during certain hours
than others. W know that's a byproduct of the
generation that's being called on, right, and we've got
a whol e representation from SPP about this and the
concerns about having to nmeet that with nore and nore
renewabl es com ng and on and dim nishing returns from
that. Again, this nullifies that. It nutes that sort
of price signal that you want to send to custoners, and
that's going to be a very difficult task. | think we
all collectively inthis roomw !l say that, and this is
quite frankly I think why | support staff's time of use
rates, is that it's that training wheels approach. It's
a lead into sonething that's going to be hopefully much

more pronounced noving forward because we do have
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concerns about customers, we know there's going to be

sone pain involved init. The real crime would be doing
nothing after we've invested all this noney at this
poi nt.
MR CLIZER: | have no further redirect.
Thank you, Your Honor.
JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Dr. Marke.
THE WTNESS: Thank you
JUDGE HATCHER:  You are excused.
(Wtness excused.)

JUDGE HATCHER: CQur last witness for the day,

OPC.

MR CLIZER W would call Lisa Krenmer to the
st and.

JUDGE HATCHER: Ms. Krener, please raise your
ri ght hand.

Do you solemly swear or affirmthat the
testinony you're about to give will be the truth, the
whol e truth, and nothing but the truth?

THE WTNESS: | do.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Please take a
seat. M. dizer.

LI SA KREMER
having been first duly sworn, was exam ned and testified

as foll ows:
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR CLI ZER

Q Can you please state and spell your |ast nane
for the court reporter?

A Yes. Lisa Krener, L-i-s-a K-r-e-me-r

Q By whom are you enployed and in what capacity?

A ' menployed by the Ofice of the Public
Counsel as a consultant.

Q D d you prepare or cause to be prepared
testinony that has been premarked 322, the direct
testinony of Lisa Krener, 323, the rebuttal testinony of
Li sa Krener, public and confidential, and 324,
surrebuttal testinony of Lisa Krener, public and
confidential?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any changes you would |ike to nake
to that testinony?

A Just a couple, M. Cizer. Page 8 of ny
rebuttal, line 10, after LAK-R-1 | should have (Data
Request Response 5017).

JUDGE HATCHER: If | could interrupt, M.
Krener.

THE WTNESS: Yes, sSir

JUDGE HATCHER: | sincerely like the

Chairman's solution at the hearing. Wuld you read the
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entire sentence now wth the corrected version?

THE WTNESS: Certainly. Gad to. Custoner
surveys and interpretation of their results should be
careful |y eval uated and revi ewed when draw ng
assunptions. The page regarding and headed -- well,
that's confidential

MR CLIZER: If | may really quick. Was the
recomrended -- the change that you wish to nmake just
i ndi cating what the contents of that schedule were?

THE WTNESS: It is. It's referencing it back
to that DR 5017, and all of that is confidential.

JUDGE HATCHER: | apol ogi ze. Let's nove on to
your next correction.

THE WTNESS: (Ckay.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

BY MR CLIZER

Q Do you have further questions?

A | had one nore. And that is page 16, it's the
footnote, footnote 24. And that should read pages 5 and
6 and the lines are correct 17 through 9, but it should
read pages 5 and 6.

Q So for the record you are correcting the page
nunbers being referenced and nothing el se?

A Yes, Sir.

Q Ckay. Thank you. Bearing in mnd those
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corrections, if | were to ask you the sanme questions

today as posed in your testinony, would your answers
today be the same or substantially simlar?

A Yes.

Q Are those answers true and correct to the best
of your know edge and belief?

A Yes.

MR CLIZER | would offer the direct,
rebuttal, and surrebuttal testimony of Lisa A Krener
which is again 322, 323, and 324 respectively noting
rebuttal and surrebuttal has both confidential and
public versions.

JUDGE HATCHER:  You' ve heard the notion by
M. Cizer. | will not repeat the nunbers. And there
are public and confidential versions of both. Are there
any objections to the adm ssion of those three exhibits
onto the hearing record? Hearing none, they are so
adm tted.

(OPC EXHI BITS 322, 323, AND 324 WERE RECEI VED
| NTO EVI DENCE AND MADE A PART OF TH S RECORD.)

MR CLIZER At this point, | tender the
Wi tness for cross-exam nation.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, sir. W go to M.
Mers. Good afternoon, Ms. Krener.

THE WTNESS: Good afternoon
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. MERS:

Q Are you famliar with the statenents made in
testinony and then statements nmade here today by Evergy
about how this is a programdesigned to neet custoners
who want to choose that it's filling what they believe
to be a gap in the narket?

A Un-huh. 1've heard them make that comrent and
| think M. Caisley in his direct had custonmer choice
ment i oned t hroughout his testinmony, the need to provide
customer choice. And | can expand on that unless you've
got a specific question.

Q "1l let your counsel allow you to expand j ust
so hopefully we all can get out of here by 5:00.

A Sure, certainly.

JUDGE HATCHER |If we could get Ms. Kremer to
move the m crophone unconfortably close to your nouth,
Thank you.

BY Ms. MERS:

Q And so are you famliar with the surveys on
custoner research Evergy clains to have utilized to come
to that conclusion?

A Yes, ma'am That was one of ny corrections a
moment ago. That 5017, which I may have brought that up

inits entirety, | did, that entire survey nmaterial is
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all confidential but there's a lot of | think very

interesting and telling information in that DR response.

Q | s ny understanding correct that that DR
response has been attached in its entirety to your
testinony?

A No, ma'am | don't think | attached it inits
entirety. What | did was pull out I think sone key
slides.

Q Ckay. Is it your understanding that the nain
survey for this consisted of 39 custoners?

A There was that and then there was anot her
survey that is the on line, as | understand it, the
advi sory panel that Evergy uses and | believe that's
several thousand. Well, yeah, | stay out of the HC here
I f we can.

Q | guess we will try. | know that you have
fromyour testinony [ooked at that a little nore closely
than | have. So if we're wandering there, hopefully
you'll catch it and let ne know.

A Sure.

Q Do you know when those surveys were done?

A Yes. | believe -- well, that's all part of
that HC. | don't knowif that's okay to --

JUDGE HATCHER: This is all in her prefiled

testinony?
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BY Ms. MERS:

Q Yes. Is that in your prefiled testinmony?

A | think I called it HC |'mnot sure.

JUDGE HATCHER. |'mreferencing that everyone
can go back and read it and you don't have to speak
about it. Just give us the citation.

THE WTNESS: Yes, Judge, that's correct.

BY MS. MERS:

Q Do you recall that citation? Sorry to put you
on the spot.

A That's all right. Let me see here. It is
that whole DR 5017, and let nme see here. |'m not
finding specifically where | may have -- well, here's
part of it and that's on page 17, line 24 is one
reference.

MR FISCHER: ['msorry to interrupt. Wich
schedul e are you referring to?

THE WTNESS: That was in ny testinony,

M. Fischer, but I think the attachments LAK-R-1, that
was | believe confidential and then -- let's see here.
LAK-R-2 is confidential. Let's see here.

MS. MERS. | apologize. | amtrying to tread
the line between not going into confidential material
and al so not burdening the record with repetitive

testinony, but it does seemthat there has been interest
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expressed by the Comm ssioners to when the timng of

thi s decision happened and that is just what | want to
make sure that the record has somewhere in the record,

not in a data request that's not in the record, so that
can be relied uponis ny intent.

JUDGE HATCHER. If that's your intent, may I
offer submtting the data request as an exhibit?

M5. MERS. | do not have it with ne.

JUDGE HATCHER: Not now. As we have in this
case, we've kind of done it that day or the next day.
How long is this data request?

THE WTNESS: Sir, it's about that thick

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes. Would you pl ease prepare
that as a highly confidential so marked exhibit.

MR CLIZER:  Your Honor, | don't believe it
woul d be highly confidential because there was never a
protective order issued for it. | think it would just
be confidential.

MR FI SCHER: Judge, | don't know if the only
purpose is to get the date out of it, we could stipulate

to the date and you woul dn't have to go through the

process of submtting all that. | don't know what the
date is onit. | can get that information.
JUDGE HATCHER:  Not ny call. |'m/looking at

Ms. Mers if she is satisfied with that.
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MS. MERS. | can be satisfied with stipulating

tothat. I'msure that would be easy if they can
provide it. W can back check through the actual data
request. Yes, that is sufficient for ne.

JUDCE HATCHER: Done.

MS. MERS. | apologize for getting us all off
cour se.
BY M5. MERS:

Q Do you know when custoners, again I'mtrying
to watch the HC, but when custonmers express interest
about fixed bills as Evergy represented today, do you
know was that in those surveys distinguished from

traditional budget billing?

A | think | can answer your question, M. Mers,
but it is -- I"'mwalking a fine line here in noving into
that confidential. |'mnot sure how to answer your

question in a public setting.

JUDGE HATCHER Let's stop here.

MR, CLIZER  Your Honor --

JUDGE HATCHER:  Yes.

MR CLIZER: -- can | have one nonent.

JUDGE HATCHER Pl ease.

MS. MERS. | believe we have come to a
solution. It does appear that we will have to go in

canera, but the parties suggest that perhaps | finish
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and then whoever el se may have questions, any non-HC

portion, get through that part and then all of the in
camera work be done at once to kind of make it easier on
everybody. Does that sound acceptabl e?

JUDGE HATCHER: | have to give ny standard
caution that this Comm ssion has made it very clear that
they want as much of the business of this Commssion to
occur in the public eye. To that end, | nyself have
witten reports and orders that are not confidential but
reference confidential material. | would nuch, much
prefer that we stay in the public realmto discuss this
I ssue and whichever is the confidential part we can all
call it something else, but | find that to be nore
useful than going in canera and then having an open
di scussi on about this issue that the public does not get
to see.

M5. MERS. | think unfortunately where the
Issue lies inthisis it's nmy understanding that the --
It's not specific terns or phrases but the bul k of just
what was done for the custoner research on this has been
marked confidential. And | do think that there is val ue
for the Comm ssion to know and hear about how the survey
was conpl eted and how that was used to justify the
creation of this program but however | was not the one

who nmarked it confidential, and therefore |'mnot really
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| guess sure how to best approach it other than | guess

we could go back to trying to submt that entire DR
again if that's the best way. Unfortunately that may
mean that people's briefs would have confidenti al
information init. | think that we get to a point we
may not be able to conpletely --

JUDGE HATCHER: To neke sure that |I'mclued in
on where we're treading.

MS. MERS: Sure.

JUDGE HATCHER: The conpany did sonme research
wi th custoners.

MS. MERS: Yes.

JUDGE HATCHER: And one part of this case is
do they get reinbursed, right, for that study.

M5. MERS. Yes. | don't believe that -- well,
actually | shouldn't say that.

MR CLIZER: There's a portion of it that
concerns whether or not --

JUDGE HATCHER: M crophone.

MR CLIZER: There's a question regarding
whet her or not M. Hedik's personal consulting fee
shoul d be included, but that's not related to here.

Apol ogi es.  Your Honor --
JUDGE HATCHER:  Yes.
MR CLIZER: -- another possible solution if
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it's all, we could do what staff suggested and then

after the fact if conpany |ooks over it and says there's
nothing actually confidential in here, we could go ahead
and file the information as public. The only part that
woul dn't be in the public's eye would be this nonent

ri ght now when it's happening what the actual transcript
woul d be. I'mjust throw ng out sol utions.

JUDGE HATCHER. M inclination, ny thinking
off the top of ny head is that the conpany may have
marked this as confidential to protect it from other
conpani es that here's the questions we asked, here's how
we went about it. | think just off the top of ny head
If we proceed slowmy and don't put too fine of a point
on how did you phrase this question and why, then |
think we can probably get through today and not go into
camera. Yes, we may have a very large exhibit. That
has been expressed to ne that that is how the Conm ssion
prefers it instead of taking notice. That just makes it
a lot easier for the appeals record as Judge Di ppel
mentioned on Friday. | apologize if that creates a |ot
of work. W can cut down on the distribution, do that
by enail. That m ght overl oad everybody's email,
don't know. Let's go forward and see where we're at.

MS. MERS. That approach works.

BY M5. MERS:
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Q In general with trying to see, if we can, but

trying to avoid perhaps maybe the nethods in specific
questions, let's see if this way works. Did the
questions lay out any programin detail as it has
appeared in the tariffs, the public tariffs here?

A Ma'am |'ve |ooked at that tariff that they
have filed. Ofhand | can't -- it may be in the
description they may have tal ked about that. Can you
repeat that question again.

Q Yeah, perhaps a better way to phrase it is
guess on a general high |evel overview of what you've
seen in the custoner research and surveys, were any
specific formulas for how this programwoul d work
mentioned or was it in generalities?

A Well, one thing I think I can say safely and |
had used this word confidentially in ny testinony but |
believe Ms. Wnslow put it in her testinony as public
and that is that word unlimted. And | think | can say
wi t hout breaching anything that unlimted is in -- |
think she says even that | quoted one of their, | think
It was the noderator's guide that used that word, and
that's for the 39 custoners that they interviewed, used
the word unlimted | think she said 22 tinmes. So
don't feel like |I'msaying anything inappropriately

here, but | would heavily make that point that that was
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-- that concept of unlimted energy was certainly driven

home in that research.

Q And actual ly |ooking back, do you have M.
Wnslow s surrebuttal with you?

A | have it back there. | don't think |'ve got
that wth me.

JUDGE HATCHER: M. dizer, thank you, and
pl ease proceed.

THE WTNESS: Gve ne just a nonent, ma'am

MS. MERS: Sure. It looks |ike that begins on
page 20 if that hel ps narrow.

THE WTNESS: Did you say her rebuttal ?

MS. MERS. Her surrebuttal.

THE WTNESS: Her surrebuttal, yes, |'ve got
that wwth me. That's page 207?

MS. MERS: Yes.

THE WTNESS: Yes, na'am |'mthere.
BY M5. MERS:

Q So it looks like this is all public from what
I'mlooking at. That should help. |[Is your recollection
of how, because you said there was at |east two studies;
Is that correct?

A That's nmy understanding they had two survey
tracks.

Q Then it looks like fromline 4 of her
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surrebuttal that the earliest study by Infinite 2021.

Does that nmatch your recollection?

A Yes. Well, except | wasn't sure about that

early. | was -- Wat | thought | saw was at the end of
2021.

Q So sonetine in 20217

A Yes, nma'am

Q Do you recall when this case was filed?

A Was it April maybe, this case was filed in

April. |'mnot sure.

Q Turning back to her testinony, it |ooks |ike
the italicized portion line 11 through 21, 1'Il let you
take a nonent to review that.

A Yes.

Q | won't -- Since it's already in Ms. Wnslow s
testinmony, | won't read it again, but does that reflect
your recollection of how the programwas identified and
described in the surveys that you saw?

A Yes. And they, | won't give the name, but
they actually used, if ny recollection is right, even a
different name for the subscription plan with that
concept of that unlimted concept.

Q Ckay. Do you believe that based on -- |']
ask you, | apologize, let me ask you sonething el se

first instead. Have you seen any education or marketing
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materials on how Evergy proposes to get the word out to

customers on this?

A | think that, and maybe M. is it Hedik? |
think he may have provided some kind of, you know,
wording could be this. | think he gave maybe some
exanples. But | think that is one of the concerns that
|"ve had and | think Ms. King as well in how they wll
market this plan. And | will go ahead and say | think
M. Fischer said brought this home that it's going to be
optional. Well, it may be optional, but if you are
heavily marketing sonmething and that's within the
conpany's control, the marketing is within their control
as unlimted using the word that's now in the public
domain as unlimted energy for a single price, | nean,
think that you're going to certainly get the attention
of your custoners.

Q So with the current education that's been
proposed or what we've seen in the past regarding
education for other rate offerings, do you believe
custoners have a great understanding of how these
prograns woul d work or how rates work in general ?

A Ma'am and | tell you, in preparation for
today, and I wll do ny absolute best to stay out of the
HC, | went back through that response in 5017 and | nade

notes about concerns that | saw. And | will just say

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

© o0 ~N oo o B~ W N B

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

: . . ) Page 640
this. And | can direct I guess the Comm ssion or the

parties to a figure | had in ny testinony that dealt
exactly with that education issue and the concerns |
have around the |ack of education on existing plans.
And | mght -- Well, actually page 13 -- let's see here.
Page 13, line 13 in the highly confidential gives that
per cent age.

MR CLIZER What testinony are you
referenci ng?

THE WTNESS: ['msorry. Rebuttal

MR, CLIZER: Thank you
BY Ms. MERS:

Q So were you -- Are you concerned that this

Wi Il create an appropriate or unrealistic long-term
expectations for participants based on the | anguage

you' ve seen on how they described it?

A Ma'am | think it sends -- | have so many
concerns with this program | nade a couple of notes
about some of ny concerns. | took the approach of it
being a custoner detrinment. In ny opinion, it's a

detriment because these adders of this up to 10 percent
or no nore than 10 percent nentioned in the tariff, |'ve
heard 5 percent nentioned today or 7 percent, but the
tariff |anguage which is what is going to be filed with

the Conm ssion or has been filed with the Conm ssion
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says not to exceed 10 percent, and my history is

typically I mean |1'd be surprised if we weren't at that
ceiling of 10 percent. Custoners are going to pay nore.
They're going to pay that behavioral use adder. They're
going to pay, let nme find, the program cost adder and
they're going to pay this risk premumadder. There's
sone costs right there. This would go to the HC on what
custoners nost desire. And if | can find that

reference, what they nost desire, and if you can give nme
just a nonent.

Q Sure, take your tinme.

A | can try to dig that out here.

Q If it helps us with the HC, | think that it's
I n everybody's best interest.

A Ckay. Page 14, lines 14 through 16, it |ooks
like | reference Schedule LAK-R-7, but there is in the
little asterisks there for confidential exactly what
customers want, what is their first priority, and this
Is not, inny opinion, this is not that. A couple of
ot her thoughts |I had in response to your question, in ny
opinion it's a disservice to the custoners and to the
public interest to conpare electric service necessary
for life and health to gym nenbershi ps and Netflix. And
| can't help but think about, and this was public in ny

testinony, 27 percent of the conpany's customers are | ow
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I ncome and, you know, |'m wondering how those customners

woul d feel if they understood that we're conparing this
necessary service to things |ike a gym nenbership which
| ' m guessi ng some of those custonmers nay not have or
Netflix. The program adders are not necessary. They
are not necessary in order to provide good electric
service at giving the custoner options through the
different -- the average paynent plan that the conpany
has and sone of the other rate structures that they
have. A level pay tool already exists. | just said

t hat .

In nmy opinion, the distortion of the use of
the termefficiency inthis. |f you do nothing, maybe
you're using electric service highly inefficiently right
now. But if you maintain that usage, you're going to
get that behavioral use adage or behavioral use adder
back. So to me that's kind of a distortion of the
i mportant word of efficiency. The programis not |ow
risk, and this is something DR 5050. W asked t hem
about what is this really going to do to custoners’
bills, and right out of the shoot, and M. Hedik
responded to this, on average custoners are expected to
pay nore under subscription pricing than they otherw se
woul d under the standard rate. To me that hits several

-- rings several bells including | would say being of
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detrinent to the consuner.

The conpany has pronoted this plan as
unlimted energy, not as a budgeting tool. And we have
tal ked about -- | think Dr. Marke testified to PURPA and
Its tenets to pronote conservation and to reduce our
peak demand.

Let ne see what else | had here. W're
removing the usage signals. | think Ms. Wnslow
testified, and | was confused about this, and |'m gl ad
Ms. King nentioned in her testinony, she hit Chapter 13
strai ght on because the conpany was asking for variances
to that. |In those variances fromny nenory it was neter
reading. It was usage information. Those things are
very inportant to the custoner. And | read some of M.
H edi k's testinony about do custoners, they nmay not want
all of that information. Custoners are entitled to that
information. W want educated custoners. There's no
need to conpensate the conpany for additional risk
through a prem um because the programis unnecessary.
That's the risk premumthey're talking about. It is
not truly tailored to each custoner because we are not
weat her normalizing individual customers in this program
and that was discussed | think by Ms. Lange.

And | think those are, |'m probably

overanswering your question there, but those are sonme of

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

) _ Page 644
the concerns that | had with this program

Q Were you here for M. Lutz's testinony today?

A Yes.
Q Your background is, | should know this, we
just talked about it. I'Il just ask you what is your

background experience?

A Vell, I"'ma certified internal auditor and so
that nmay be what you're referring to.

Q So we' ve had questions about who is and isn't
an auditor today. |Is it your understanding as an
auditor that OPC, staff, and the Conm ssion are
prohi bited from maki ng adjustments to below the |ine
account s?

MR, FI SCHER: (bjection, Your Honor, | think
that's calling for |egal conclusion.

M5. MERS. | would think auditors would be the
peopl e maki ng adjustnments to the accounts. | hope that
they woul d be able to.

JUDGE HATCHER: | think it's the Conm ssioners
that nake those adjustnents. However, it is a |egal
conclusion. The Conmi ssioners nmake those | egal
concl usions. However, they have been consistent in
allowing others to offer their opinions. So please go
ahead.

THE WTNESS: Well, | guess there's two parts
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to that answer. Partially, Ms. Mers, | don't know But

| would say --

MR FISCHER: Calls for specul ation, Judge, if
she doesn't know.

THE WTNESS: Well, | said it was a two-part
answer, M. Fischer.

MR FISCHER: |'msorry.

THE WTNESS: Ckay. Part of ny answer is
don't know for sure, but | can tell you fromny
experience on staff and now working with the OPC we
woul d try.

BY Ms. MERS:

Q Try to rephrase this so | don't step on
anyone's toes here, but perhaps the best way to | ook at
this is the Uniform System of Accounts is the
traditional | guess guidelines for how accountants,
auditors, people |look at and review cases and how
general |edgers and cost expenses, other itens are
treated; is that correct?

A Yes, nma'am

Q I n your understanding of the USOA and genera
Comm ssion practice, wthout statutory authorization or
Comm ssi on aut horization or other special accounting
treatment, can cost expenses, revenues fromthe past be

capt ured?

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Publ i c Servi ce Comm ssion
Sept enber 06, 2022

© o0 ~N oo o B~ W N B

N I R R S I - T N e e e e N e
ga A~ W N b O © 00 N oo 0o M W DD -+ o

Page 646
A Capt ur ed.
Q If it's outside say a test year you're | ooking
at in arate case. |'ll clarify.

A That's not been ny experience. But you know,
| woul d have to defer to Ms. Lange or sonebody nore in
the know about the regulatory -- the treating of that.

Q But in your experience it's been typical that
it's been -- Storm Ui, for exanple, was an AAQ, |
believe. | believe there was -- so anytine in your
experience it's nore typically done through some kind of
aut hori zed order?

A Yes, recognizing those, right, that are
outside of the normal realm

Q So there are special rules that kind of govern
when it is |ooked at. Ckay.

A Yes, ma' am

M5. MERS. | think that is all | have. Thank
you for bearing with ne on this.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, Ms. Mers. That
moves us to Renew M ssouri .

MS. GREENWALD: No questions, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: And to the conpany.

MR. FI SCHER: Thank you, Judge.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR FI SCHER:
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Q It's getting late, Ms. Kremer, so | don't want

to take too much tine, but | did want to go to part of
your testimony. | would like for you to turn to page 7
of your rebuttal testinony.

A Yes, sir.

Q And you're talking there on line 18 and
t hrough 20 about both the advanced easy pay and the
subscription pilot, pricing pilot, right; is that
correct?

A ' m | ooking at that right now. You said page
772

Q Yeah, page 7, lines 18 through 20. 1'd just
li ke to focus on the subscription pricing on this
question. There you say the conpany's pilot prograns
of ferings of subscription pricing do not address a
specific custonmer need and are not choices that are in
the public interest. |Is that what you say there?

A That's what | say.

Q | take it that would be, as you' ve been
saying, that's ny opinion?

A Well, | didn't say that there. | guess this
Is my testinony so it would be my opinion.

Q Shoul d your individual clients at the Ofice
of the Public Counsel thenselves be able to deci de what

choice is in their best interest?
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A M. Fischer, | amglad you asked ne that

questi on.
Q |'mglad | did too. Go ahead
A In ny opinion, we are trusted by the M ssour

consuners in the state to vet out and to get into the
details of programs, and | don't think you can just say
Isn't choice good. | tried to say this | think in ny,
let's see, sonewhere in ny rebuttal, | believe to

M. Caisley because he talks a |ot about choice. And
the challenge is is that not all choices are in the
customer's best interest. That's the point of ny
testinony on subscription pricing.

Q That's what you're trying to say is that it is
better for the Ofice of the Public Counsel to decide
what is in the individual custonmer's choice when they
have an option to join a pilot program is that what
you' re saying?

A Sir, I'msaying it is our job to recomend to
this Conm ssion prograns that we believe are truly in
either the public interest or the interest of the
consumer. That's our job.

Q Ckay. Having been around the Conm ssion for a
long time, do you believe the Comm ssion should be a
surrogate for conpetition?

A A surrogate for conpetition. | think that
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somewhere, | can't recall the authoritative source that

tal ks about that, and | think that that's typically
applied with regard to rate setting, you know, to make
sure that rates are inline with -- that are appropriate
because there are no conpetitors as you know to Evergy.

Q In a conpetitive market, does the custoner
of ten have a choi ce about whether to buy a service |ike
an internet either on a subscription basis or by the
penny or by the time?

A In that type of nmarket, they have the choice
to go to many internet providers. They only have one
electric provider here and that's Evergy. |It's very
different.

Q Ms. Krener, do you have a subscription plan
for your internet?

A We do.

Q |'s your internet service essential for you to
have -- for you to do your job at the Ofice of the
Publ i ¢ Counsel ?

A Sir, it is not nearly as essential as it is to

ny life to have electricity. | can tell you that. |
can live without that internet. | nay not want to, but
| want that electricity. | want the house cool in the

sumer and warmin the wwinter. So | don't think those

are really good conpari sons.
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Q (kay. But you do need it, don't you?

A No. Need is a very serious word and it's been
used a lot in this subscription pricing plan.
MR FISCHER: That's all the questions | have,
Judge. Thank you very nuch.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. Fischer. That
w || take us to Conm ssioner questions. Are there any
Comm ssi oner questions for Ms. Kremer?
CHAI RVAN SI LVEY: No questions, Judge.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Chairman. The
bench has no questions. | believe M. i zer.
MR. CLIZER: Thank you, Your Honor.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR CLIZER
Q All right. So we'll pick up where the conpany
left off really quick. First of all, you were asked if
that was your opinion. Let's set the record straight
here. Your testinony represents your understanding as
an expert looking at the material and providing a
recomendation to the Conm ssion based on your
expertise, correct?
A Yes, Sir.
Q You had a long career of working for both the
staff of the Public Service Conmi ssion and then |ater

i ntervening before the Public Service Conmi ssion with DE
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and then now working with OPC?

A Yes, sir.

Q So those lines on page 18 to 20 are not just
the personal opinions of Lisa Krener; they represent
your expert recommendation based on your years of
experience?

A Yes, sir.

Q Very good. Now, let's talk about another term
that's kind of not being thrown out here. Let's talk
about overreach. So when the conpany is asking you
questions regarding the ability to nake a choice, do we
as the O fice of the Public Counsel have a duty to
protect custoners fromoverreach by the conpany?

A | believe we do.

Q And is the conpany asking or providing a rate
that is potentially harnful to customers an exanpl e of
overreach?

A | believe | have said that in ny testinony.

Q And just to be clear, the OPC represents the
interest of all consumers, correct?

A Yes, Sir.

Q So in working for the OPC, you're not just
representing the handful of individuals who work there
but the interest of all consuners?

A Yes, Sir.
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Q Al right. | knowit's getting late. [I'm

going to try and keep this as brief as possible. You
had made a conment regarding -- rather directed the
Comm ssion to ook at a certain portion of your
testinony on what custoners actually want. Do you
recall that?

A Yes.

Q Just for the record, just for the record,
confirmfor nme that was rebuttal testinony.

A Let nme see that. Yes, rebuttal page 14, |ines
14 t hrough 16.

Q Al right. Thank you. | didn't know you had
menti oned which testinony you were reading fromearlier.

A Rebuttal, yes.

Q You nmentioned in your |list of concerns a
distortion of the word efficiency?

A Yes.

Q That's a relationship to the efficiency
I ncentive, correct?

A Yes, sir, it is.

Q Can you pl ease el aborate on that?

A Yes. As | understand, the conpany, this
behavi oral use adder of 5 percent, if the custoner's
usage remains the same during that year of subscription

pricing, they will get that 5 percent back, and |
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believe the conpany said, | can't recall if they gave an

average of what they thought that m ght be, but my point
about that is that that in ny mnd is again sending the
wrong signal to the customer. Efficiency should be
about working to reduce consunption, understanding your
consunption, let's see, reducing waste, maxim zing
productivity, and | don't think that that kind of a
giving a custoner back a behavioral usage adder for
doing the same thing is really a very clear signal about
what true efficiency is when it cones to electricity.

Q And | think you m ght have nentioned this in
your previous response, noving closer to the mke,
apol ogi es, a custoner who maintains their existing usage
Wi Il receive the efficiency incentive even if they
haven't actually reduced usage?

A Yes, that's ny understanding.

Q Thi s next question I'mgoing to ask you I'm
going to preface by saying if you don't think you can

answer this wthout touching confidential information,

just say that and we'll nove on.
A Ckay.
Q | don't want to tread into that water any

more. Regarding the issue related to the surveys, can
you in general summarize the concerns you had with the

surveys, again w thout discussing any confidenti al
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i nformation?

A Let me ook at my notes, M. Cizer. Let ne
see if there's --

Q I f nothing el se, you can just reference the
page nunbers of what will become a future exhibit if you
think that will help.

A W' ve kind of talked about these things. |
won't go into detail here. You can |ook at ny
attachnments, the schedules, and reference those back to
the testinmony on what they say about this unlimted
plan. We tal ked about -- | think we've tal ked about
education, and that certainly is a strong concern that |
have.

Let me see. The itemwe just went over on
page 14 about what custoners truly want, what they are
most interested in and what in my opinion this program
wi || not give them based on the conpany's response to
5050, which says on average custoners are expected to
pay nore under subscription pricing than they otherw se
woul d under the standard rate. | think that's probably
it in a nutshell.

Q As to the rest, we'll just reference the
document when it's filed in briefing. Thank you. |
think I have only one last kind of |ine of questioning

here. At the very beginning of staff's questioning, you
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wer e asked whether or not | believe you agree with

testinony. And | apologize | don't remenber whose
testinony was being referenced if this was a program
desi gned to neet customer choice. |'m paraphrasing. Do
you recall that?

A That nmay have been M. Fischer. |'mnot sure.
Desi gned to neet custonmer choice. And | think what |
was trying to say is that in ny mnd, and | believe |
had this in testinmony, this is not a viable choice.

This is not a good choice. This is not a choice in the
customer's interest or the public interest. In nultiple
areas that |'ve tal ked about, the adders that customers
are going to pay, their bill is going to be higher and
then this whole -- | think this overarching thing of
moving us in the wong direction, Dr. Mrke tal ked about
this, of the unlimted energy, custoners using nore,
wrong direction.

Q So to paraphrase, you see this as a potentia
harmto custoners and you want to protect themfrom
overreach by the conpany?

A That is certainly part of it.

Q What part am | m ssing?

A Well, I think it's the idea that as a, and |
think M. Hedik mybe tal ked about this in terms of our

environnental concerns trying to reduce our consunption,
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shift our demand. This does not do that at all. It

certainly is against | believe PURPA, the tenets of
PURPA.

MR CLIZER Al right. I'mgoing to cut it
off there so that we can call it quits before the end of
t he wor kday.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, M. Cizer. That
does bring us to the end of the issues today. M.
Kremer, you are excused fromthe wtness stand. Thank
you very nuch

(Wtness excused.)

JUDGE HATCHER: A coupl e qui ck announcenents
before we do | eave for the day. At the beginning of the
hearing, | discussed the Conm ssion's request for an on
the record. That is an official request. [|'m not
putting it in a witten order, because |'ve been here
al | day.

So the request is that the parties would in
their next joint communication discuss when that m ght
be doable. M friendly recommendation is this week. W
do have control of their calendars to a | arge extent.

So if we can get it done this week, great. If not, |
understand. G ve nme a heads up.

Announcement nunber two. Just a remnder. W

have a 3:00 p.m aimfor drop time for tonorrow, as at
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| east one party and possibly nore have an interest in
anot her case. | cannot inmagi ne why.

| have an email from ChargePoint -- you all
have the sane email. It just came in -- wanting to know

about excusing M. Wlson fromtestifying tonorrow. |
normal |y grant these w thout nuch review

The reason |'mbringing this up to the parties
now is the confusion that | have. The email references
that there is a settlenment regarding the nonresidential
electrification rates which | have as |ssue 20, XX, and
according to the attachment B to the settlenent, to the
omi bus settlenent, the remaining issues that we had to
me still look |ike we have not only electrification
tariffs but the A, B, and C which involve ChargePoint's
W tness. And under the other topic for tomorrow under
rate design | still show sub F as being a live issue,
whi ch is what ChargePoint is asking to be excused from
Again, | don't want to get into everybody's settlement
di scussi ons.

MR CLIZER | don't know that there was an
update as to remaining issues because the settlement had
never been fully finalized. W're waiting on additional
sign off fromsome parties. | think that it wll
resol ve sone of the issues under the electrification

heading. | don't want to speak out of turn regarding
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the el enents to rate design. As far as the OPC as an

i ndi vidual is concerned, we can waive Cross on
M. WIson.

JUDGE HATCHER. That's between you guys in the
email. | wanted to nmake sure that it was ny
m sunder st andi ng, which it is, and not M. WIlson's or
M. Dunbar's, which it is not. So | will grant their
request.

And any ot her announcenents before we adjourn
for the day? Excellent. W are adjourned. Of the
record.

(The proceedings adjourned for the day at 4:57

p.m, and will continue in Volume 11.)
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CERTI FI CATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF M SSOURI )
COUNTY OF COLE )

|, Beverly Jean Bentch, RPR, CCR No. 640, do
hereby certify that | was authorized to and did
st enographically report the foregoing Public Service
Conmi ssion evidentiary hearing and that the transcript,
pages 456 through 659, is a true record of ny
st enogr aphi ¢ notes.

| FURTHER CERTIFY that | amnot a relative,
enpl oyee, attorney, or counsel of any of the parties,
nor am| a relative or counsel connected with the
action, nor aml financially interested in the action.

Dated this 26th day of Septenber, 2022.

Cuindu Jean Bortal

Beverly Jea{j Bentch, RPR, CCR No. 640
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